








I TARA

me GAME
CHANGER

From its bald styling to its All-Grip 4WD, its Superiar
Fuel Efficiency to its Safety Features, the Yitara
changes everything. Available in an exciting array
of calors with a 10.1 inch Infotainment System, it
literally tops it all with its Panoramic Roof.













Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct shall be applied to all
Directors, Officers and Employees of Suzuki
Motor Corporation and its  consolidated
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as
"Suzuki Group")

Every Suzuki Group company should fully disseminate
this Code of Conduct to its directors, officers and
employees and oblige them to observe it in its
internal rules andfor employment agreement and
in case of their breach of this Code of Conduct, it
will be dealt with in accordance with the applicable

disciplinary provisions.

For our customers

(1) Realization of products and services of superior

value

Suzuki Group will provide customers with products

and services exceeding their expectation as in line

with the spirit “Develop products of superior value by

focusing on the customer™ which is listed as the first

item in our "Mission Statement”.

* We will make every effort to provide products
and services that will satisfy our customers, by
standing in our customers' place at all times.

(2) Activities on Quality

Suzuki Group will develop and produce high quality
products which customers can use in relief and will
provide after-sales services considering customers’
safety and security with first priority.

If by any chance a quality related problem occurs,
Suzuki Group will devote its sincere efforts to react
on customer's voice, grasp the problem at an early
stage and take measures with thorough investigation
into the causes so that the customer can continue
using Suzuki products in relief.
= We will never neglect any quality related problem
on our product that may affect our customers'
safety or security, noticed during development,
production or after-sales service.

= We will never lead to a conclusion in our own
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favour when reacting to indications from our
customers related to the quality on our products.

= We will treat aforesaid guality related problems
and customers' indications on gquality with
utmost sincerity, and will devote our best efforts
not to spoil customers’ trust.

For a Better Working Environment

(3) Respect of Human Right

Suzuki Group will be aware of international norms

pertaining to human rights and respect fundamental

human rights with reference to laws in each country

or region.

= We will cooperate with each other as a member
of Suzuki Group to create a working environment
with no discrimination by personal attributes
or harassment.

(4) Occupational Safety - Traffic Safety
Suzuki Group will review the workplace environment
to create safe workplace.

Suzuki Group will thoroughly carry out education on

safety to prevent occurrence of occupational injury.

= We will strictly obey rules related to safety so
that we can maintain safe workplace and prevent
occurrence of occupational injury,

= We will immediately report to our supervisors for
improvement when we notice any problem
related to safety at our workplace.,

= We will be conscious that we take part in the
automobile industry, observe traffic rules, keep in
mind to drive wehicles safely as a social norm,
and endeavour to prevent traffic accidents while
on duty or in private.

(5) Promoting Kaizen Activities and Observing
Basic Business Rules

Suzuki Group encourages employees to come up
with inventive ideas to improve the workplace.
Suggestions from employees on Kaizen will be

evaluated and effective measures will be adopted
and widespread amongst Suzuki Group companies
for a growth of the entire group.

Suzuki Group will create basic rules on our work for

the employees to follow.

* We will always think seriously about our
business, take the lead in action and make a
proposal to the company when we notice any
points of improvement,

= We will thoroughly enforce mutual understanding
at our workplace and communicate owver and
over again until others comprehend sufficiently.

* We will always be conscious of overall
optimization and make efforts to share
information between departments and
companies.

= We will observe the business rules provided from
time to time in 2ach workplace.

For Shareholders And All Other
Stakeholders

(6) Compliance

While Suzuki Group acknowledges the existence

of difference in laws related to competition such

as Antitrust Law and laws related to fair trading by

each country or region, Suzuki Group will grasp the

difference and carry out training on employees to

observe laws and societal norms in their respective

countries and regions.

= We will observe the content of the guidance
and training provided by the company on laws
and societal norms.

= We will immediately consult with our supervisors
when we notice any noncompliance of
suspected noncompliance by another employee.
In case we think it is improper to consult with
our supervisors, we will report to the
Consultation & Reporting Desk in our company
or those provided by Suzuki Motor Corporation.

{7) Environmental Activities
In order to succeed the beautiful earth and affluent
society to the next generations, we must all realize
that actions of each and every one of us have a great
effect on our earth’s future therefore Suzuki Group
will make every effort to preserve global environment.
= We will endeavour to produce environmentally
friendly products that will be reguired by our
customers, by contributing to development and
diffusion of environmentally friendly technology.

= We will reduce burden on the environment
sourced from our workplace and dewvote our
sincere efforts to maintain the environment of
our workplace and local community.

(8) Refusing relations with antisocial forces

= Suzuki Group will thoroughly refuse any
relationships  with antisocial forces™ and
organizations which are threatening the order
and safety of civil society.

= We will never accept any unreasonable demand
from antisocial forces™ and organizations on our
own decision and will always report to or consult
with our supervisors or related department.

* “Antisocial forces” means any group or individuals
pursuing illicit inancial gain by violence, power and
fraudulence.

Questions on Code of Conduct?

In case any query or question arose when following
this Code of Conduct, please consult with your
supervisor or other responsible person in your
company. The person who was consulted must
make every effort to correspond to the consulter. In
case you could not solve the problem within your
departments or within your company, please inform
the related department or the Secretariat of Corporate
Governance Committee at Suzuki Motor Corporation,
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Highlights of the Accounts

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Increase/(Decrease) Increase/(Decrease)
2018 2017 Amount % 2018 2017 Amount %
memmm e [RUp@ES [N "000) ~——mm e e am - {RUp@ES N "000) ~—mmm e
Praduction volume (Nos.) Other income 5R5,943 864,711 (298,768) (34.5)
- Motorcar 143,239 132,725 10,514 7.9 as a % of net sales 0.5 0.8 (0.3)
- Motorcycle 23,014 19,603 3,411 174
Other operating expenses (WPPF 2 WINF) 154,20k 513,997 (259,793) (62.8)
Sales volume (MNos.) as a % of net sales 0.1 0.4 (0.3)
- Motorcar 140,313 132548 7,765 5.9
- Motarcycle 23,160 19,901 3,259 16.4 Share of loss from associated company 3,212 11,914 (8,702) (73.0)
as a % of net sales 0.1 0.2 (0.1)
Gross Sales 125,842,362 107,095,587 18,746,775 el
Profit before taxation 2,082,936 5,619,214 (3,536,278) (62.9)
Selling Commission 5,988, LG4 5,283,976 704,488 13.3 as a % of net sales 1.7 5.5 (3.8)
as a % of gross sales L8 4.9 (0.1)
Profit after taxation 1,298,108 3,825,821 (2,527,713} (66.1)
Net Sales 119,853,898 101,811,611 18,042,287 17.7 as a % of net sales 1.1 3.8 (2.7)
Gross profit 7,040,865 9,652,573 (2,607,708) (27.0) Shareholders’ eguity 29,232,865 29,549,716 (316,851) (1.1)
as a % of net sales 5.9 9.5 (3.5)
Earnings per share (Rs.) 15.77 46.49 (30.72) (66.1)
Distribution expenses 2,706,853 2,804,256 (97,603) (3.5)
as a % of net sales 23 2.8 (0.5) Break-up value per share (Rs.) 355,20 350 05 (3.85) (0.01)
Administration expenses 2,301,080 1,589,815 701,265 538 Number of shares issued (000) £2.300 82300 = =
as a % of net sales 19 16 0.3 : i
Exch Rate (IPY to PER 0k 943 0.0979 0.4
Finance Cost 362,523 68,088 294,435 532.4 KEADES At Y 0. FhR) et i i s
as a % of net sales 0.3 01 0.2
Exchange Rate (USD to PKR) 117.55 105.07 12.48 1187

Sales Revenue Breakup - 2018 Sales Revenue Breakup - 2017

= Dperating Expenses & Others
W Cost of Sales
® Profit before Taxation

® Operating Expenses B Others
W Cost of S5ales
® Profit before Taxation
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Highlights of the Accounts Segment Wise

For the year ended December 31, 2018

Production volume {Nos.)
Sales volume (Nos.)
Gross Sales

Selling Commission & Discount
as a % of gross sales

Net Sales

Gross profit
as a % of net sales

Distribution expenses
as a % of net sales

Administration expenses
as a % of net sales

Finance Cost
as a % of net sales

Other income
as a % of net sales

WPPF 2 WWF
as a % of net sales

Share of loss of equity accounted investee
as a % of net sales

Profit before taxation
as a % of net sales

Profit after taxation
as a % of net sales

Earnings per share (Rs.)

Number of shares issued (000)
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CAR DIVISION
2018 2017 INCREASE/ %
DECREASE
------------------- (Rupees in "000) ~====m=m=== e
163,239 132,725 10,514 g
140,313 132,548 7,765 6
122,532 685 104,518,068 18,014,617 17
5,967,010 5,260,559 706,651 13
4.9 5.0 (0.1)
116,565,675 99,257,509 17,308,166 17
6,726,635 9,457,590 (2,732,955) (29)
5.8 95 (3.7)
2,655,962 2,775,083 (129,121) (5)
23 28 (0.5)
2,099,691 1,481,995 617,496 b2
18 1.5 0.3
360,604 66,851 293,753 &39
0.3 0.1 0.2
513,901 815,954 (302,053) (37)
0.k 0.8 (0.4)
154,204 413,997 (259,793) (63)
0.1 0.4 (0.3)
3212 11,914 (8,702) (73)
0.0 0.0 (o)
1,975,063 5,523,704 (3,548,641) (64)
17 56 (3.9)
1,190,235 3,730,311 (2,560,076) (68)
1.0 38 (2.8)
14.46 45,33 (30.37) (68)
82,300 £2.300 - -

MOTORCYCLE DIVISION TOTAL
2018 2017 INCREASE/ % 2018 2017 INCREASE/ %
DECREASE DECREASE
mmmmmmmmmee (RUDEES N F000) mmmmmmmemme s (Rupees in "D00) ==========me=amux
23,014 19,603 3,411 17 - - - ”
23,160 19,901 3,259 16 - - = -
3300677 2,577,519 732,158 28 125,842,362 107,095,587 18,746,775 18
21,45k 23,417 (1,963) (8) 5,988, 464 5,283,976 704,488 13
0.6 0.9 (0.3) 4.8 6.9 {0.1)
3288223 2,554,102 734,121 29 119,853,898 101811611 18,062,287 18
320,230 194,983 125,247 64 7,064,865 9,652,572 (2,607,708) (27)
9.7 16 21 5.9 8.5 (3.6)
60,891 29,173 31,718 109 2,706,853 2,804,256 (97,403) (3)
1.9 1.1 0.7 23 28 {0.5)
201,589 117,820 83,769 71 2,301,080 1,599,815 701,265 b4
6.1 L6 15 19 16 0.4
1,919 1,237 682 55 362,523 68,088 294,435 432
0.1 0.0 0.1 0.3 0.1 0.2
52,042 48,757 3,285 7 565,943 864,711 (298,768) {35)
16 19 {0.2) 0.5 0.9 (0.4)
: 3 0 154,204 413,997 (259,793) (63)
0.0 0.0 - 0.1 0.4 {0.3)
0 0 - 0 3,212 11,914 (8,702) (73)
0.0 0.0 - 0 0 (0)
107,873 95,510 12,363 13 2,082,936 5,619,214 (3,536,278) (63)
3.3 3.7 (0.4) 17 55 (38)
107.873 95 510 12,363 13 1,298,108 3,825,821 (2,527,713) (66)
3.3 3.7 (0.4) 11 38 (2.7)
1.31 1.16 0.15 13 15.77 46.49 (30.72) (66)
82,300 82,300 . 3 82,300 82,300 a 2
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6 Years at a Glance

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
= — = {Rupees in "000) = S ss SR sRs A saS
OPERATING RESULTS
Production valume ([ Nos.)
- Motarcar 143,239 132,725 111,979 134,391 20,384 77,142
- Motorcycle 23,014 19,603 18,374 18,610 23871 2249717
Sales volume ( Nos.)
- Motorcar 140,313 132,568 110,000 133,952 78,005 77,080
- Maotareycle 23,160 19,901 17,946 20,617 23,653 23117
Sales revenue 119,853,898 101,811,611 76,516,040 B4 548,757 53,664,947 51,061,333
Gross profit 7,064 865 9,652,573 7,348,577 11487448 4,183,699 3,262,513
Profit before taxation 2,082,936 5,619,214 4,615,236 8,685,171 2,623,394 2,353,439
Profitf/(loss) after taxation 1,288,108 3825821 2,772,635 58462671 1,921,894 1,849,357
Dividends (cash/bonus shares) 260,068 1,530,777 452 649 1,234,698 611,699 329,199
Profit retained 1,038,040 2,295,064 2,319,986 6,608,173 1,510,395 1,520,158
CAPITAL EMPLOYED
Share capital 822,999 822,999 822,999 822,999 §22,999 822,999
Reserves 27,109,749 24,898,931 22,619,294 18,009,762 16,488,378 14,969,549
Unappropriated profit 1,300,117 3,827,786 2,774 616 5,846,477 1,925,305 1,852,610
Shareholders' equity 29,232 BG5S 29,569,716 26,216,907 24,679,238 19,236,682 17,645,158
Current Liabilities 32,276,984 21,360,751 11,635,058 12,772,749 9,117,477 6,166,119
61,509,849 50,910,467 37,851,965 37,451,987 28,354,159 23811277
Reprasented By:
Fixed Assets 15,654,827 8,800,002 6,672,057 6,510,789 4,790,506 4,892,675
Other Non - Current Assets 2,173,188 1,104,378 661,665 425792 456,080 546,237
Met Current Assets 43,681,834 41,006,087 20,518,243 32,515,406 23,107,573 18,372,365
61,509,859 50,910,467 37,851,965 37,451,987 28,354,159 23811277
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PROFITABILITY RATIOS

Gross profit as a % of net sales
Profit before taxation
as a % of net sales

Profitf{loss) after taxation
as a % of net sales

Earningf{loss) per Share (Rs.)

LIQUIDATY & LEVERAGE
RATIOS

Current ratio

Quick ratio

Liabilities as a % of total assets
Equity as a % of total assets

EFFICIENCY RATIOS

Imventory turn over ratio

No. of days stock held

Mo, of days sales in trade debts
Total assets turn over ratio

Met worth tum over ratio

EQUITY RATIOS

Break up value per share (Rs.)
Cash Dividend as a % of capital
Dividend payout ratio (%)
Plough-back ratio (%)

OTHER DATA

Permanent employees strength
(Nos.)

Mumber of shares

59

1.7

11

15.77

135
0.44
52
48

3.8
95
0.7
18
b1

355.20
316
20

80

2,025

82,299,851

2017

9.5

5.5

3.8

4649

1.92
0.79
42
58

3.8

95
0.8
20
34

359.05
136

40

&0

1,345

82,209,851

2016

9.6

5.3

36

27

2.62
121
3
69

4.2

36
5.7
20
29

318.55
A3
16
84

1,269

82,299,851

2015

13.6

103

69

710

2.55
1.51
3k
6

5.6
65
6.7
23
ik

299.87
150

21

79

1,257

82,299,851

7.8

L9

3.6

234

2.53
0.88
32
68

3.3
110
9.2
19
2%

233.74
50
21
79

1,272

82,200,851

013

6.4

L

3.8

225

2.98
1.23
26
T4

4.5
82
1.0
2.1
29

214.40
40
18
82

1,273

82,209,851
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Horizontal Analysis of Balance Sheet Horizontal Analysis of Profit or Loss Account

2018 = 207 = 206 % 205 = 2006 = 2003 % Faiil] % 017 % Fatild] = 2015 % 20 % 2m3 =

T | 1 .| e e SO S L SR R R M s i

BALANCE SHEET

Faed msats 15,758 155 §Es 332 G745 §88 4,504 {80] 4998 [1.8]° 5@75 753
Sales 115855 17.7

4 1000 s 198.1) 231 21 1 - 10 8,7 5 &0
Cost of salas (112.808) ZL& (9211 2167 54) (7 1) W17 (A0 8F]
and ok E55 158 3|z 12 b 180 25 a.7 23 (37.8) 37 [£1.3)

recenEies 118 [18.6] 145 51 o5 [154) 114 [24.6) 1m2 [8.7) 1M &3
' ; s Gross profit L5 (21 BS L4 7 - 11,488

Defered tation 1158 3861 237 13 234 2.0 185 243.2 56 (52.2] leg

b 8387 228 23946 LY 16284 W5 13082 [128] 14577 8.8 L6 Dstribution and selling costs (z.707) {3.5)
Trade debt 238 128 211 (B25) 1205  [228) 1,562 155 1,352 1.5 568
Cutranit port n
instaiiment sales receiables 551 113 371 10,3 241 (164) 48 {10.3) 383 172 131 8k Adminisiratne expenses {2,301) 438
Loans and advances i3 02 37 (B1A) 1 1.5 198 {61.5) 515 2510 612 1113
1357 50,5 G 17 55 7 f159) &3 G1.5 Jther expenses {154) 6.8 53] : (1 1 17 57.7
Accrued profit on bank deposits 29 EF1E 24 131 [573) i3 B il | 116.7
(iher recehables 1] (100} 93 by 433 a7 134 175 14 (a0}
3 Other income 566 3856 BES 168
Sales tax and excsa duty adjustabls L2310 820 1,144 1,651 43,0 278 {723) 1002 W3 B0 [12.9)
Taxation - et 5T98 193 B 300 1587 1804 18] 1,590 (221) 2787 53] 2847 B
Cash and bank balances 1515 (B5) 8188 15  BS&E  [430) 15005 151 1841 (B3] 1,865 356 Operating profit 2,448 {57)

Total sssets 61,510.0 08 509100 345 37852 11 37a52 321 B35 151 &8 114

Shame capnal "3 - E22
Foess erves 2BAI0 2] mr27
Total Equity 29,233 1) 29550

Trade and other payables 15810

Advances 2,216 (57.3) 5332
Aecnesd mang-up i - 1
Short=lerm finance 11310 100

4233 B2 850

i 571 14

] = i

- B3

[61.5) 4,236
7B 2055
- 36

158.1)

19414
19,217

LT

[37.7)

BE

Total equity and liabilities 61,510.0 08 509100

385

L1 37A52

Er A |

%354

181

114
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[ e Fi i . . P
Share of ioss of equity accounted

inmeasies

Profit before taxation

laxation

Profit after taxation

(3 {75}

(363) 526

2,083 (62.9) 5 T

(785}  (s&z) (1.7

1,298  ([B6.1) 3,826 38.0 2,173

5,842 2040 1,921 3.9 1,849 89.3
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Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution

Waalth Generated
Total gross revenue and other income
Brought in matenals and services

Wealth distribution to stakeholders
To Employees

Salaries, wages ,other cost including retirement benefits
and WPPF

To Government

Income tax, sales tax, excise duty, development
surcharge, WWF

To Society
Donation toward earthquake victims, IDPs and health

To Shareholders
Dividend and bonus

To providers of finance
Finance charges for borrowed funds

To Company
Depreciation, amortisation and retained profitf (loss)
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100.00

27,664,860

2018 2017
{Rupees in "000) % {Rupees in '000) %

148,806,459 126,550,040

120,527,871 98,885,171
28,278,488 100 27,664 869 100
2,996,012 10.59 2,365,398 8.55
22,130,723 78.26 20,022,130 7237
10,616 0.04 3,932  0.01
1,530,777 5.41 452,649 1.64
135,827 0.66 1,597 0.01
1,424,735 5.04 4,819,163 17.42
28,278,488 100.00

Wealth distribution to stakeholders-2018

066% 541% 504

m Employees

® Government

m Society

m Providers of Finance
= Shareholders

m Company

Wealth distribution to stakeholders-2017

po1% 104%  1742%

Bl

® Employees

® Government

m Society

= Providers of Finance
m Shareholders

® Company
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WAGONR

Be Practical

WagonR with its K- Series Engine is fuel efficient and
guarantees a drive that is smooth, noiseless and
powerful. Known far its practicality, performance
and comfart, it is the perfect family car.
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Further, Company took initiative and made a strategy
to enter into Joint Venture agreement with suppliers
to provide confidence to Technical Assistance
provider. In this regard, Tecno Glass Limited (TAG) was
established on March 16, 2017 for manufacturing
automobile glass. TAG is a Joint Venture Company
between Tecno Pack Telecom ({Private) Limited
and Company. Company had contributed equity
investment of Rs 244.4 million which was approved
by shareholders in Extraordinary General Meeting
of the Company held on February 16, 2017. TAG is
planned to commence commercial production by
mid of 2019, This Joint Venture is a first green field
project between Pak Suzuki & its suppliers. Beside
technology transfer and localization of glass for auto
industry, the project will contribute significant cost
saving to Company and eamn reasonable returns on
the investment.

Improvement & Development of

Suppliers:

For promoting the culture of continual improvement,

Company carried out:

= Multiple trainings in the areas of Quality, KPI
management, Value Engineering, Development,
etc.

= Comprehensive assessment of all suppliers at
organizational level for improvement,

= Audits of suppliers along with SMC experts,

Study Tours for Suppliers:

In order to align business practices of our local
parts suppliers with international practices, Supply
Chain Function arranged following study tours for its
suppliers"™:

= Magyar Suzuki Corporation (MSC) Ltd. Hungary
and its suppliers:
Study tour to MSC, Hungary and its 6 suppliers
was arranged for 15 Plastic and Rubber
components suppliers of Pak Suzuki.

= Suzuki IndoMobil Motor (SIM), Indonesia and
its suppliers:
Study tour to SIM, Indonesia and its 8 suppliers
was arranged for 15 sheet metal components
suppliers of Pak Suzuki,

Green Procurement:

Pak Suzuki, in coordination with Suzuki Motor
Corporation, Japan initiated Green Procurement

L6 Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

Guideline activities for its suppliers. The purpose of
this activity is to ensure non-usage of Substance of
Concern (SOC) like Asbestos and other prohibited
substance as designated by Pak Suzuki along with
applicable law and regulations with respect to
environment.

Facility Enhancements

= The company has developed warehouse facility
at Manga Mandi, Multan Road, Lahore for
capacity of more than 2,000 vehicles to facilitate
the customers for early delivery of vehicles,

= To reduce the breakdown time, Air Supply and
Exhaust system of Body and Plastic Parts painting
has been replaced.

= The Company provides healthy and comfortable
working environment to its employees. Therefore,
environmental improvement activities have been
carried out throughout the plant by installing
Chiller units with Fan Coil Units to reduce the hot
weather impact at shop floor.

Human Resource
At Pak Suzuki, employees are not only part of the
Suzuki Family but are also considered the back bone
of the Company's efforts in achieving and maintaining
highest standards of productivity, work ethics and
conducive environment.

Company is committed to provide an environment
which facilitates the employees in performing to
their maximum potential while maintaining required
amount of work life balance. At the same time, it
is also ensured that with the passage of time the
employees get substantial amount of opportunities to
develop themselves in terms of skills through specially
designed programs for training and development. All
measures are taken for the betterment and wellbeing
of the employees and special activities are carried
out to keep up the motivation level.

Training and Development:

Pak Suzuki Motor Company strives to provide its
employees with inspiring training and education
experiences that broaden and enhance skills and
uncover new concepts and ideas. Talent development
takes many forms at Pak Suzuki Motor Company,
including training sessions for key functional areas.
In the year 2018, 720 locals as well as 12 foreign
trainings were conducted for the benefit of the

employees to further improve their productivity and
skills related to their work responsibilities

Talent Acquisition:

The Company has undertaken several campus
recruitments drives at leading graduate educational
institutions for Management Trainee and Trainee
Engineers. Our aim is to reach out to the best talent
available and be easily accessible to them. For this
purpose, an HR portal has been developed and can
be accessed at www.paksuzuki.com.pk where the
candidates can register themselves online, upload
their CVs and have a fair chance of selection. Due
to the consistent implementation of the above-
mentioned processes, the Company received a huge
response from potential candidates and in the year
2018, 68 Management Trainees graduating from
various reputable Engineering Universities, Technical
Colleges and Business Schools were inducted in the
Company, after successfully going through a well-
defined selection process.

Health and Safety:

The health and work place protection are the most

vital areas to be considered for each member of the

Suzuki Family regardless of being part of management,

officer or worker cadre. Company strived to ensure

the health and safety of Suzuki family members in

the following ways:

= Compliance with all applicable Government
and internal health, safety and environmental
requirements;

= Design facilities and conduct operations in a way
that avoids risk to human health, safety and the
environment;

= Examine and communicate the known hazards
of operations with relevant health safety and
environmental protection  information to
potentially affected persons.

24-hour availability of dispensary facility, fully
equipped with able team of doctors is always
ready to provide medical care to the employees.
Furthermore, considering our duty to protect and
ensure maintenance of health of all Pak Suzuki family
members, a yearly medical screening is conducted
for all employees to make sure that they are fully
aware of their hesalth conditions and to protect them
from any contagious diseases.

Sports and Social Events:

Employee engagement in sports activities have
been proven to reduce staff turnover and improve
praductivity. Every year, the Company arranges sport
tournaments for recreation and entertainment of
employees and to provide an environment where
all employees can enjoy without any stress and
job pressure. During the year, we arranged inter-
departmental Cricket tournaments & Indoor games.
These events provide an excellent opportunity for
the staff to go a long way in instilling the spirit of
competition among them in a healthy environment.
The winners and runner up teams are presented with
prizes and trophies.

Furthermore, the Company also celebrated the
grand event of Family Day on September 8, 2018 at
PAF Museumn, Karachi. A separate family area was
designated for kids where diverse activities were
organized for amusement of children of every age,
followed by a grand musical show for all to enjoy and
savor the fun and entertainment.

Corporate Events:

A ceremony was held on 26th November 2018 to
celebrate the landmark achievement of 2 million
vehicles line-off in Pakistan. Chairman Suzuki Motor
Corporation, Mr. Osamu Suzuki graced the occasion
with his presence and Advisor to Prime Minister for
Commerce, Textile, Industry & Production, Mr. Abdul
Razzaq Dawood was cordially invited as chief guest
of the Ceremony. Milestone of 2 million vehicles was
the result of coordinated efforts of employees of
PSMC, suppliers, dealers and continued patronage by
customers, Both the Chairman as well as the Advisor
to the Prime Minister expressed their gratitude to the
invited dealers, vendors & PSMCL employees for the
recognition of their efforts & contribution,

Labor and Management Relations:

At Pak Suzuki, Labor-Management relations aim
to protect the interests of labor and management,
hence a strong and cordial relations between
labor and management are considered as key for a
conducive environment essential for moving towards
and achieving desired goals.

The Management of the Company therefore,

strongly emphasizes harmonious relations with
all stakeholders to ensure the productivity of the
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employees in a conducive environment essential to
the industrial progress.

Information Technology:

Information Technology is driving innovation in the
business environment. With rising wvolumes and
upcoming challenges our business operations are
becoming more complex. The key success factor is
our 'Lean Thinking" and that is an integral part of our
Enterprise IT. It helps us in adapting new technologies
more gquickly and minimizes the transformation
challenges through our [T-Business Footprint, Pak
Suzuki IT is focused to bring more robust systems to
enhance collaboration among business stakeholders,
innovation and smart adaption of digital technologies
for improving guality of services and better customer
experience,

People Engagement & Collaboration:

Microsoft Office 365 and Microsoft SharePoint was
implemented back in 2017. The main objective was
to improve business workspace and automation
experience. Recently, we collaborated with Global
Suzuki Subsidiaries using SharePoint to work on
Global Projects as TEAM SUZUKL In 2018, an edge
for cognitive data analytics with Microsoft Business
Intelligence was added. It brings data visualization
and empowers users to get business insights and
meaning full information out of the BIG DATA.

GENESYS CRM:

Recent introduction of GEMESYS CRM Call Center
Systemn enables quick access to the relevant
information that saves customers' valuable time.
It personalizes the customer experience, deliver
call center officers with complete insight into the
customer journey, helps in prioritizing and deliver work
iterns based on call center officers availability and
skill. It delivers omnichannel customer experiences
that include interactions through multiple digital
channels and bridging the gap between CRM systems
and call center processes.

Business Continuity:

Information Technology is the eco system of all the
business operations, and for that reason, it is at the
center of recovery planning. To further strengthen
Business Continuity, Pak Suzuki adopt the strategic
shift from our existing On-Premises IT Disaster
Recovery (DR) Site to Hybrid Cloud. The Disaster
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Recovery is a framework of getting all important IT
Infrastructure and operations up and running against
an outage.

Information Security:

Information and Cyber Security program is aimed
to insulate the Company and its operations form
potential security threats and therefore treated at
the top most priority. Pak Suzuki has invested on
Tools and Technigues to respond such emerging
threats including Cyber Maturity Assessment and
Vulnerability/Penetration  testing conducted by
external experts. Such Auditing greatly helps us in
maintaining the stakeholders’ confidence in Pak
Suzuki IT Infrastructure and services.

Economic Contribution

The Company has a distinctive position in the
automnobile industry as a leading contributor to the
public exchequer. The duties and taxes paid and the
foreign exchange saved by the Company in its |ast six
years of operations are as follows:

Year Duties & Foreign exchange
(Jan-Dec) taxes Savings *
{Rupees in billion)
2013 15.380 27.275
2014 17462 25.067
2015 26.422 39.688
2016 S 36.457
2017 35.162 £3.182
2018 41.218 55.396

Duties and taxes paid by Company during the year
represent around 1% of total tax revenues estimated
in the Federal Budget for the fiscal year 2018-19,
*Converted into Pak Rupees at year end
exchange rate.

Government Policies

Fiscal Policies:

In its Federal Budget 2018-19; the Gowernment
provided reliefs by reducing rate of corporate tax
from 30% to 29%, rate of super tax will be applicable
@ 1% of profit before tax for accounting year 2018.
Further, rate of tax on undistributed profits decreased
from 7.5% of Profit before tax to 5% of Profit before

tax and condition of minimum distribution of dividend
equal to 40% relaxed to 20% of profits after tax.

However, all these reliefs have been offset by
increase in additional customs duty from 1% to 2%
which directly results in increase in cost of products.
Furthermore, restriction on purchase of vehicles by
non-filers of tax returns was reflecting on the sales
volume of automobile manufacturers as well as
automotive suppliers’ business.

Subsequent to the year end, the newly elected
Government of Pakistan announced Finance
Supplementary (Second Amendment) Bill, 2019
bringing a host of measures and policy changes to
address the issues faced by industry. Key changes
relevant to auto sector includes:

i. Permission granted to non-filers to purchase
locally manufactured cars;

ii. Super tax abolished from tax year 2020;

iii. Tax @ 5% of Profit before tax in case of dividend
distribution of less than 20% abolished from Tax
year 2019, corresponding accounting year 2019
of Pak Suzuki;

v, 10% FED imposed on locally manufactured
vehicles exceeding capacity of 1700cc; &

v. Duties increased on imported cars from 20% to
25% for 1801-3000cc engine sizes and from 20%
to 30% for over 3000cc engine sizes.

We welcome the positive policy measures taken by
the Government and expect that policies will be
made to boost industrial growth of country.

Automotive Development Palicy (ADP):

Government has announced ADP in March 2016
applicable over a medium-term horizon of 2016-
2021. ADP envisages development plan for
automobile industry to facilitate higher volumes,
attract investment and ensure enhanced competition.
Objective of policy is to create balance between
industrial growth and tariffs to ensure sustainability
for all stakeholders. Incentives offered in ADP

encourages new entrants in auto industry and so far
green field status (new entrant) has been awarded to
Seventeen (17) entities and brown field status (revival
of non-operational unit) to Two (2) entity. Existing
QEM's in Pakistan were looking for expansions and
expecting similar incentives as offered to potential
new entrants.

Suzuki Motor Corporation, Japan (SMC), Principal
shareholder and parent company of Pak Suzuki Motor
Company Limited, is looking for opportunities for
further expansion in Pakistan. We continue to engage
with Government of Pakistan to find the best solution
for investment in new plant.

Used Car Policy:

The import of used vehicles in big number is hindering
the growth of industry. Despite the restriction on age
limit of imported used vehicles for 3 years, 58,592
units of used vehicles were imported during the year
as compared to 77,972 units of last year. In January
2019, Government has imposed a condition to show
proof that the remittance for payment of duties and
taxes originates from the bank account of Pakistani
national sending the vehicle from abroad. The revised
procedure will regularize the import of used cars.

Future Outlook & Conclusion

Pakistan's economic indicators show signs of
slowdown and economic growth in the fiscal year
2018-19. GDP is expected to remain around 4% due
to large fiscal and current account deficits. During the
calendar year 2018, we witnessed sharpest increase
in policy rates in recent past by State Bank of
Pakistan (SBP). Current policy rate is 10.25%. Average
inflation for fiscal year 2019 is expected to remain
in the range of 6.5% to 7.5% due to higher fiscal
deficit, food inflation, higher oil prices and Pak Rupee
depreciation. Pak Rupee is expected to remain under
pressure in rising external debt scenario. Prevailing
economic situation of rising interest rates, higher
inflation, Pak Rupee devaluation and lower economic
growth poses major challenges for auto industry.
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Director’s Report

The Directors of the Company are pleased to
submit their report together with audited financial
statements and Auditors’ Report thereon, for the year
ended December 31, 2018,

Accounts

(Rs in 000)
Profit before taxation 2,082,936
Taxation (784,828)
Profit after taxation 1,298,108
Retained earnings of prior years 2,009

Net Profit available for appropriation 1,300,117
Less: Appropriations

Transfer to General Reserve 1,039,000

Proposed Cash Dividend @

Rs. 3.16 (31.6%) 260,068
1,299,068

Retained earnings carried forward 1,049

Earnings per Share
The earnings per share for the year were Rs. 15.77

Holding Company

Suzuki Motor Corporation, incorporated in lapan, is
the holding company of Pak Suzuki Motor Company
Limited with 73.09% shares.

Chairman’s Review

The Chairman's review on page 42 to 50 deals with
the year's activities and the directors of the Company
endorse contents of the same.

Corporate Governance

The management of the Company is committed to
good corporate governance and complying with the
best practices. As required under Code of Corporate
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Governance, Directors are pleased to state as follows:

The financial statements, prepared by the
management of the Company, present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash
flows and changes in equity.

= Proper books of accounts have been maintained
by the Company.

= Appropriate accounting policies have been
consistently applied in preparation of financial
statements and accounting estimates are based
on reasonable and prudent judgment.

= |International Financial Reporting Standards,
as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in
preparation of financial statements.

= The system of internal controls is sound in design
and has been effectively implemented and
maonitored.

= There are no doubts upon the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern.

= Appropriate whistleblower protection mechanism
is in place.

= Company places priority to safety and health of its
employees. Provide proper medical cover and
carry out periodical medical screening of
employees.

= There has been no material departure from the
best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations.

Key Operating and Financial Data
The key operation and financial data of the Company
for six years are summarized on page No. 2&.

Government Taxes
Outstanding taxes and levies have been explained in
note 24 to the annexed audited financial statements.

Investments of Employees’

Retirement Funds
The following were the values of investments held by
employees' retirement benefits fund at the year-end:

Dec 18 Dec 18
Provident Fund 852.215 757.220
million million
Gratuity Fund 695998 452257
million million

Board of Directors Meetings

During the year four (4) meetings of the Board of
Directors were held. Attendance of each director was
as follows:

No of meetings
attended

Mr. Kinji Saito [
Mr. Masafumi Harano [
Mr. Hirofumi Nagao /

Mr. Tetsuya Fujioka &
Ms. Rukhsana Shah 3
Mr. Shigeo Takezawa 4
Mr. Kazuyuki Yamashita [
Mr. Moin M. Fudda [

Leave of absence was granted to director who could
not attend the meeting

Audit Committee Meetings

During the year four (4) meetings of the Audit
Committee were held. Attendance of each director
is as follows:

No of meetings

attended
Mr. Moin M. Fudda 5
Mr. Kinji Saito [
Mr. Shigeo Takezawa [

Human Resource & Remuneration

Committee Meetings

During the year three (3) meetings of the Human
Resource & Remuneration Committee were held.
Attendance of each director is as follows:

No of meetings

attended
Ms. Rukhsana Shah 2
Mr. Kinji Saito 3
Mr. Masafumi Harano 3

Leave of absence was granted to director who could
not attend the Committee meeting.

Directors' Training Program

All the directors on the Board are fully conversant
with their duties and responsibilities as directors of
corporate bodies. In accordance with the criteria
specified in regulation 20 of the Code, five directors
of the Company have certification under Directors
Training Program and one directors of the Company
has the exemption from the requirement of Directors’
Training Program.

Pattern of Shareholdings
The pattern of shareholdings as of December 31,
2018 is given on pages 138 to 141,

Trading in Shares of the Company by
Directors and Executives

Directors, executives and their spouses and minor
children have not carried out trading in shares of
Company.

Appointment of Auditors

The present Auditors Mfs. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, retire and offer themselves
for re-appointment. The Audit Committee has
recommended for their re-appointment for the year
ending December 31, 2019. The Directors endorse
recommendation of Audit Committee.
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Notice of Meeting

Notice is hereby given that the 36th Annual General
Meeting of the shareholders of Pak Suzuki Motor
Company Limited will be held at Ramada Plaza Hotel,
near Airport, Karachi on Tuesday, April 23, 2019 at
10:00 a.m. to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business

1- To confirm minutes of Annual General Meeting
held on April 25, 2018.

2- To confirm minutes of Extra Ordinary General
Meeting held on lanuary 29, 2019,

3- To receive, consider and adopt the audited
accounts of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2018, together with Directors’
and Auditors' reports thereon.

k- To approve payment of cash dividend @ 31.6%
i.e. Rs. 3.16 per share of Rs. 10/- each.

5- To appoint auditors for the year ending December
31, 2019 and fix their remuneration. Messrs
KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co., Chartered Accountants,
retire and being eligible have offered themselves
for re-appointment.

6- To consider any other business with the
permission of the Chair.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD

ABDUL NASIR
COMPANY SECRETARY

Karachi: March 28, 2019

Notas:

1- The share transfer books of the Company will
remain closed from April 17, 2019 to April 23,
2019 (both days inclusive) and no transfer will be
accepted for registration during this period.
Transfers received in order till close of business
on April 16, 2019 will be accepted for transfer.

2- Only those persons whose names appear in the
Register of Members of the Company as at April
17, 2019 will be entitled to attend [ participate
in [ vote at the Annual General Meeting and be
entitled to receive above stated cash dividends.

64 Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

3=

A member entitled to attend and vote at this
meeting may appoint another member as his
her proxy to attend the meeting and vote for him
her. Proxies in order to be effective must be
received by the Company not less than 48 hours
befare the meeting.

Members are requested to notify change in their
address, if any, to the Company's share registrar
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Ltd.,
CDC House, 99-B, Block 'B’, S.M.CH.S. Main
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

COC Account Holders will further have to follow
the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in
the Circular 1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan.

For Attending the Meeting

i. In case of individuals, the account holder
or sub account holder and/ or the person
whose securities are in group account and
their registration detail are uploaded as per
the regulations, shall authenticate his/her
identity by showing hisfher original
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC)
or original passport at the time of attending
the Meeting.

ii. In case of corporate entity, the Board of
Directors' resolutionfpower of attorney in
favor of the nominee shall be produced
{unless it has been provided earlier) at the
time of the Meeting,

SECP wide its SRO 779(1)/2011 dated August

18, 2011 has made it mandatory for the companies

to provide CNIC numbers of the shareholders on

dividend warrants. Therefore, members who have
not yet submitted photocopies of their wvalid

CNICs to the Company are again requested to

immediately submit the same directly to

Company's share registrar Central Depository

Company of Pakistan Ltd.,, CDC House, 99-B,

Block °'B', S5.M.C.HS. Main Shahrah-e-Faisal,

Karachi. Dividend Warrants of the shareholders

who will not submit the copies of their CNICs will

be withheld by the or Company.

7= The Government of Pakistan, through Finance Act
2018, has made certain amendments in Section
150 of The Income Tax Ordinance 2001 whereby
different rates are prescribed for deduction
of withholding tax on amount of dividend paid to
shareholders. These tax rates are as under
a. For filers of income tax returns 15%
b. For non-filers of income tax returns 20%

To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the
amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of @ 20%,
all the shareholders whose names are not included
in the Active Taxpayers' List (ATL) available on the
website of FBR despite of being filers are advised to

make sure that their names are added in ATL before
the start of book closure,

Further, according to clarification received from
Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), with-holding tax will
be determined separately on ‘Filer/fNon-Filer' status
of Principal shareholder as well as joint holder(s)
based on their shareholding proportions, in case
of joint accounts. In this regard all shareholders
who hold shares jointly are requested to provide
shareholding proportions of Principal shareholder
and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them
{only if not already provided) to our Shares Registrar,
in writing as follows:

Principal Shareholder

Joint Shareholder

Folio/CD5
Mame Account Total Shares MName Sharehaolding Mame Shareholding
Number & CNIC Proportion B CNIC Propartion

Number (No. of Shares) Number (Mo. of Shares)

The required information must reach our Shares
Registrar within 10 days of this notice, otherwise
it will be assumed that the shares are equally
held by Principal shareholder and loint Holder(s).

8- Under the provisions of Section 242 of the
Companies Act, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed
Company to pay cash dividend to its sharehaolders
only through electronic mode directly into bank
account designated by the entitled shareholders,
In order to receive dividends directly into their
bank account, shareholders, who own physical
shares, are requested to fill in Electronic Credit
Mandate Form available on Company's website
and send duly signed form along with a copy of
CNIC to the Registrar of the Company. In case
shares are held in COC then Electronic Credit
Mandate Form must be submitted directly
to shareholder’s brokerfparticipant/CDC account
services.

8- Members can also avail video conference facility.
In this regard, please fill the following and submit
to registered address of the Company 10 days
before holding of the Extra-Ordinary General
Meeting. If the Company receives consent
from members holding in aggregate 10% or more
shareholding residing at a geographical location
other than Karachi, to participate in the meeting
through video conference at least 10 days prior to
date of the meeting, the Company will arrange
video conference facility in the city subject to
availability of such facility in that city.
"IfWe, of :
being a member of Pak Suzuki Motor Company
Limited, holder of ordinary share(s)
as per Registered Folio No. hereby opt for
video conference facility at iy

10- Annual Report of the company for the year ended
December 31, 2018 have been placed on the
website of the company,
https://www.paksuzuki.com.pk.

Annual Report 2018 65


















76

2018

Automobile Sales Volume

Automobile Sales Revenue

Capital Expenditure

Net Profit

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

140,313

Units

119,854

Rs. in Million

8,459

Rs. in Million

1,298

Rs. in Million

Assets - 2018 Assets - 2017

Cash & Bank Balances m Other Current Assets m Property Plant & Equipment

m Other Non Current Assets m Stock in Trade

Equity & Liabilities - 2018 Equity & Liabilities - 2017

Irade, Other Payables & m Short term finance ® Advances
Unclaimed Dividend

m Security Deposits & ®m Paid-up Capital ® Reserves
Other Current Liabilities

Annual Report 2018 77












Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

1.

Bé

Corporate Information, Operations
and Legal Status

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited (“the
Company”) was incorporated in Pakistan as
a public limited company in August 1983 and
started commercial production in January 1984,
The Company was formed in accordance with
the terms of a joint venture agreement
concluded between Pakistan Automobile
Corporation Limited ("PACO") and Suzuki Motor
Corporation, Japan (the Holding Company).
The Company is engaged in the assembling,
progressive manufacturing and marketing of
Suzuki cars, pickups, vans, 4x4s and motorcycles
and related spare parts. The Company is listed
on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered
office of the Company is situated at DSU -
13, Pakistan Steel Industrial Estate, Bin Qasim,
Karachi.

The manufacturing facilities, warehouses, area

offices and sales offices of the Company are

situated at the following locations:

Factory:
D5U - 13, Pakistan Steel Industrial Estate, Bin
Qasim, Karachi.

Wareshouses:

- DSU - 134, Pakistan Steel Industrial Estate,

Bin Qasim, Karachi.

- Tradda Manga Mandi, Raiwind Multan Road,
Lahare.
Booking offices:
- T-A, Aziz Avenue, Canal Bank Road, Guiberg
V, Lahare,
3rd Floor, 112-B Mallahi Plaza, Murree Road,
Rawalpindi Cantt.

402, &th Floor United Mall, Abdali Road
Multan.

- Shop No. G27,28 Ocean Mall, Khayaban-e-
Igbal, Block 9 Clifton, Karachi.

- Shop No. LG-02, Mall Dean's Trade Center,
Peshawar Cantt.

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

Shop No. 6, Ground and 1st Floor,170 Arcade
block, Fortress stadium, Lahore Cantt.

Sales offices (Motorcycle Division):

- Bl Suzuki 7, Nizam Chamber, Ground Floor
Shahrah-e-Fatima linnah, Queens Road,
Lahare.

- 5G Suzuki 8-A, 118 opp Mian Park University
of Engineering & Tech Gate # 6, G.T Road,
Lahore.

GT Suzuki Gujranwala Near Peoples Colony
Chowk Migar cinema GT Road, Gujranwala.

- FSD Suzuki Faisalabad 16-Jinnah Colony Mar
Wala Road, Faisalabad.

- UR Suzuki Shop # A-45 & A-46, Ground Floor,
National Complex - Block 10/A, KDA Scheme
# 33, Opp Maddin Park, Main Rashid Minhas
Road, Karachi.

- TS5 Suzuki Plot # 862, Block-D, Near Akber
Chowk, Faisal Town, Lahore,

- WR Suzuki 39-E, Main Walton Road, Lahore.

SR Suzuki Sialkot Mohallah Bijli Ghar Near
Anmol Shadi Hall, Shahabpura road, Sialkot.

= Multan Suzuki 594-A, Al-Tamash Road, Dera
Adda Chowk, Multan.

- AR Suzuki Dua Arcade, Survey # 391, Sheet
AM., Frere Road, Artillery Maidan Quarters,
Karachi.

Tecno Auto Glass Limited

Tecno Auto Glass Limited ("TAG") is a Company
incorporated in Pakistan as a public limited
Company under the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984 on 16 March 2017. The
registered office of the Company is situated
at 255 A, Block 6, PEC.H.S, Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi. TAG's main area of operations will be
manufacturing, development and designing of
Auto Glass products to cater local as well as
international markets.

TAG is a subsidiary of Tecno Pack Telecom
(Private) Limited, which owns 60% of the shares
of TAG, while remaining 40% of the shares were
acquired by Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

3.1

as more explained in note 8.1 to these financial
statements.

Summary of Significant Events
and Transactions In the Current
Reporting Period

The Company's financial position and
performance was particularly  affected by
the following events and transactions during
the reporting period:

a) During the year the Company has incurred
expenditure amounting to Rs. 642.89 millien
on its stock yard located in Manga Mandi,
Lahore which were capitalized as operating
fixed assets during the year.

b) Due to the first time application of financial
reporting requirements under the Companies
Act, 2017, including disclosure and
presentation requirements of the fourth
schedule of the Companies Act, 2017, some
of the amounts reported for the previous
period have been reclassified (refer note 42
to financial statements).

¢} For detailed discussion about the Company's
performance please refer to the Directors’
report accompanied in the annual report of
the Company for the vyear ended 31
December 2018,

Summary Of Significant Accounting
Policies

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
accounting and reporting standards as applicable
in Pakistan comprise of;

International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS)
issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan as are notified
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

3.2

33

3.4

Provisions of and directives issued under the
Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under
the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the |FRS
Standards or |FAS, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have
been followed.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except as
otherwise disclosed.

Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in
Pakistan Rupees which is Company's functional
currency. All financial information presented in
Pakistan Rupees has been rounded to the
nearest thousand of rupees, unless stated
otherwise.

Significant accounting estimates and
judgements

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with approved accounting standards,
as applicable in Pakistan, requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about the carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects anly that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
Judgements made by the management in the
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For the year ended December 31, 2018

6.1

86

application of approved accounting standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, that have significant effect
on the financial statements and estimates with
significant risk of material adjustment in the next
year are described in the following:

Determining the useful lives and residual
value of items of property, plant and
equipment {note 5.1 and 6).

Investment in associate (note 5.3 and 8).

Provision for slow moving and obsolete store
and spares (note 5.4 & 13).

Provision for slow moving and obsolete
stock-in-trade (note 5.5 & 14).

Provision for doubtful trade debts (note 5.7
and 15).

Provision for retirement benefits (note 5.11
and 21.4).

Provision for custom duties and sales tax
(note 5.12 and 24).

Provision for taxation (note 5.12, 12 and
33).

Provision for warranty obligations (note 5.15
and 21.2).

Contingencies and commitments (note 25).

Accounting Standards,
Interpretations and Amendments
to Published Approved Accounting
Standards

Standards, interpretations and amendments
to published approved accounting standards
that are effective and relevant:

Disclosure initiative - amendments to '1AS 7,
'Statement of Cash Flows' became effective
during the year requiring entities to explain
changes in their liabilities for which cash
flows have been or will be classified as
financing activities in the Statement of Cash
Flows. The amendment resulted in an
additional disclosure which has been
included in these financial statements.

The Companies Act, 2017 (‘the Act') has also
brought certain changes with regards to
preparation and presentation of annual

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

financial statements of the Company. These
changes include change in nomenclature
of primary financial statements and
disclosure requirements in the fourth
Schedule to the Act have been revised
resulting in the elimination of duplicative
disclosures to align with the IFRSs and
incorporation  of significant  additional
disclosures, which have been included in
these financial statements.

4.2 Standards, interpretations and
amendments to published approved
accounting standards that are not yet
effective:

The following standards, amendments and
interpretations of approved accounting
standards will be effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2019:

IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’ (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019)
clarifies the accounting for income
tax when there is uncertainty over income
tax treatments under [AS 12, The
interpretation requires the uncertainty over
tax treatment be reflected in the
measurement of current and deferred tax.
The application of interpretation is not
likely to have an impact on Company's
financial statements.

IFRS 15 'Revenue from contracts with
customers' (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2018). IFRS
15 establishes a comprehensive framework
for determining whether, how much and
when revenue is recognized. It replaces
existing revenue recognition guidance,
including 1AS 18 'Rewvenue’, IAS 11
'Construction Contracts’ and IFRIC 13
‘Customer Loyalty Programmes’. The
Company is currently in the process of
analyzing the potential impact of changes
required in revenue recognition policies on
adoption of the standard.

IFRS 9 ‘Financial  Instruments’ and
amendment - Prepayment Features with

Negative Compensation (effective for
reporting period / year ending on or after 30
June 2019 and for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019 respectively). IFRS
§ replaces the existing guidance in
IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. IFRS 9 includes revised
guidance on the classification and
measurement of financial instruments,
a new expected credit loss model for
calculating impairment on financial assets,
and new general hedge accounting
requirements. It also carries forward the
guidance on recognition and derecognition
of financial instruments from 1AS 39. The
management has completed an initial
assessment of changes required in
classification and measurement of financial
instruments on adoption of the standard and
has also carried out an initial exercise
to calculate impairment required under
expected credit loss model. Based on initial
assessment the management considered
that there is no significant change in the
recognition criteria or carrying value of the
financial assets or liabilities except for
classification of financial assets from loan
and receivables as per IAS 39 to amortized
cost as per IFRS 9 and impact of expected
loss model on adoption of the standard and
no additional significant impairment is
expected.

IFRS 16 'Leases' (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS
16 replaces existing leasing guidance,
including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC & 'Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’,
5SIC-15 'Operating Leases - Incentives’ and
SIC-27 'Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-
balance sheet lease accounting model for
lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use
asset representing its right to use the
underlying asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease
payments. There are recognition exemptions

for short-term leases and leases of low-
value items. Lessor accounting remains
similar to the current standard i.e. lessors
continue to classify leases as finance or
operating leases. The Company is currently
in the process of analyzing the potential
impact of its lease arrangements that
will result in recognition of right to use
assets and liabilities on adoption of the
standard.

Amendments to IAS 1 ‘Presentation
of Financial Statements' and IAS B
‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors’ (effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 lanuary
2020). The amendments are intended
to make the definition of material in 1AS 1
easier to understand and are not intended to
alter the underlying concept of materiality in
IFRS Standards. In addition, the IASE has
also issued guidance on how to make
materiality judgements when preparing their
general purpose financial statements in
accordance with IFRS Standards.

Amendment to IAS 28 'Investments in
Associates and loint Ventures' - Long Term
Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
(effective for annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2018). The amendment
will affect companies that finance such
entities with preference shares or with
loans for which repayment is not expected
in the foreseeable future (referred to as
long-term interests or ‘LTI'). The amendment
and accompanying example state that LTI
are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and |AS
28 and explain the annual sequence in which
both standards are to be applied. The
amendments are not likely to have an impact
on Company’s financial statements.

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards
2015-2017 Cycle - the improvements
address amendments to following approved
accounting standards:

= IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment
clarifies that all income tax consequences
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of dividends (including payments on
financial instruments classified as equity)
are recognized consistently with the
transaction that generates the
distributable profits.

- IFRS 3 Business Combinations and |FRS
11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment
aims to clarify the accounting treatment
when a company increases its interestina
joint operation that meets the definition
of a business. A company remeasures its
previously held interest in a joint
operation when it obtains control of the
business. A company does not
remeasure its previously held interest in
a joint operation when it obtains joint
control of the business.

- |AS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment
clarifies that a company treats as part of
general borrowings any borrowing
originally made to develop an asset when
the asset is ready for its intended use or
sale.

The above amendments are effective from
annual period beginning on or after 1 lanuary
2019 and are not likely to have an impact
on Company's financial statements.

Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies set out
below are consistently applied for all periods
presented in these financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment
Operating assets and depreciation

Operating fixed assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment (if
any) except for freehold land which is stated
at cost.

Depreciation on plant and machinery, welding
guns, waste water treatment plant, permanent
and special tools, dies, jigs and fixtures and
electric installations is charged using the
straight line method, whereas depreciation
on other assets is charged applying the reducing

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited
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balance method. The cost of the leasehold land
and leaseheld improvements is written off over
its |lease term. Depreciation on additions is
charged for the full month in which an asset
is put to use and on deletions up to the month
immediately preceding the deletion.

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to
income as and when incurred. Gain or loss
on sale or retirement of fixed assets is included
in income currently.

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and
depreciation methods are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year
end.

The carrying value of the property, plant and
equipment is reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated. An impairment loss is
recognized in profit and loss account whenever
the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
reversed if the reversal can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the
impairment |oss was recognized.

Capital work-in-progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less
impairment (if any) and represents expenditures
incurred and advances made in respect of
specific assets during the construction /
erection pericd. These are transferred to
specific assets as and when assets are available
for use.

Intangible assets

These represent costs which are capitalized
whenitis probable that future economic benefits
attributable to them will flow to the Company.
These are stated at cost less accumulated
amortization and any identified impairment
loss.

Amortization is charged to income on the
straight line method. Amortization on additions

53

is charged from the month in which an asset
comes into operation while no amaortization is
charged for the month in which the asset is
written off.

The assets’ residual wvalues, useful lives and
amortization methods are reviewed and
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year
end.

The carrying value of the intangible assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date to
determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated. An impairment loss is recognized
in profit and loss account whenever the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed if
the reversal can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognized,

Investment in associate

Associates are those entities in which the
Company has significant influence, but not
control or joint- control, over the financial and
operating policies. Interests in associate is
accounted for using the equity method.

These are initially recognized at cost, which
include transaction cost, if any. The financial
statements include the Company’s share of
profit or loss and movements in other
comprehensive income of the equity accounted
associate, after adjustments, if any, from the
date that significant influence commences until
the date it ceases. Share of post acquisition profit
and loss of associate is recognized in the profit or
loss and other comprehensive income is
recognized in the other comprehensive income.
Distributions received from associate reduce
the carrying amount of investment. When the
Company's share of losses exceeds its interest
in an equity accounted investee, the carrying
amount of that investment (including any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part
of the Company's net investment in the
associate) is reduced to nil and the recognition
of further losses is discontinued.

5.4
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The carrying amount of investments in associate
is reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the investments is estimated which
is higher of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. An impairment loss is
recognized if the carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount and is charged to profit
or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there
hasbeenachange inestimatesusedto determine
the recoverable amount but limited to the extent
of carrying amount that would have been
determined if no impairment loss had been
recognized. A reversal of impairment loss is
recognized in the profit or loss.

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at
lower of net realizable value and cost, calculated
on a weighted average basis. Provision is made
annually in the financial statements for slow
moving and obsolete items.

Stock-in-trade

Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost and
net realizable value. Cost is calculated on a
weighted average or specific consignment
basis, depending upon their categories. Stock-
in-transit are stated at invoice value plus other
charges accrued thereon to the balance sheet
date. Vehicles on wheels are taken as work=in-
process until they are approved by the quality
control department. After such approval the
vehicles are classified as finished goods. The
engines assembled are included in raw material.
The cost of engines assembled, work-in-
process and finished goods consists of landed
cost of imported materials, average local
material cost, factory overhead and direct labor.
Provision is made annually in the financial
statements for slow moving and obsolete items.

Net realizable value is determined by considering
the prevailing selling prices of products in the
ordinary course of business less estimated cost
of completion and cost necessary to be incurred
in order to make the sale. The net realizable
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values are determined on the basis of each line
of product.

Mon-current assets classified as held
for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather
than through continuing use. These assets are
available for sale in their present condition
subject only to terms that are usual and
customary for sales of such assets and their
sale is highly probable.

The Company measures its non-current assets
classified as held for sale at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell. Costs to
sell signify the incremental costs directly
attributable to the disposal of an asset,
excluding finance costs and income ftax
expense.

Trade debts and installment sales
receivables

Trade debts are recognized initially at fair
value (original value of invoice amount less
any part payment) and subsequently measured
at amortized cost or cost, as the case may be,
less provision for doubtful debts. Instaliment
sales receivables are recognized at original
invoice amount and are subsequently reduced
by the principle portion of installments received.
When the recovery of the amount is considered
uncertain by the management, a provision is
made faor the same. Bad debts are written off
when they are identified.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable
are carried at cost which is the fair value of the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods
and services received, whether or not invoiced
to the Company and subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method.

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

59 Financial instruments
59.1Financial assets

Classification

The management determines the appropriate
classification of its financial assets in
accordance with the requirements of IAS
39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement™ at the time of purchase of
financial assets and re-evaluates this
classification on a regular basis. The financial
assets of the Company are categorized as
follows:

a) At fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets that are acquired principally
for the purpose of generating profit from
short-term fluctuations in prices are
classified as ‘financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss’ category.

b) Loans and receivables

These are non-derivatives financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. The
Company's loans and receivables comprise
of trade debts, loans and advances, deposits,
bank balances and other receivables in the
balance sheet.

c) Held to maturity
These are financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity
with the Company having positive intent and
ability to hold to maturity.

d) Available for sale

Financial assets intended to be held for
an indefinite period of time, which may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or
changes in equity prices, are classified
as ‘available for sale’. Available for sale
financial instruments are those non-
derivative financial assets that are designated
as available for sale or are not classified as
(a) loans and receivables, (b) held to
maturity, or (c) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized at the time
the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
are initially recognized at fair wvalue plus
transaction costs except for financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss. In

case of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss, relevant transaction
costs are taken directly to the profit and loss
account.

Subsequent measurement.
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial
assets are valued as follows:

a) Financial asset at ‘fair value through profit
or loss’ and ‘available for sale’

Financial assets at "fair value through profit
or loss’ are carried on the balance sheet at
fair value. Net gains and losses arising on
changes in fair values of these financial
assets are taken to the profit and loss
account in the period in which these arise.

‘Bvailable for sale’ financial assets are
carried on the balance sheet at fair value.
Net gains and losses arising on changes in
fair values of these financial assets are
taken to other comprehensive income.

Fair value is determined by reference to
quoted market price. Investments for which
a quoted market price is not available or
the fair wvalue cannot be reasonably
calculated, are measured at cost, subject to
review for impairment at each balance sheet
date.

b) ‘Loans and receivables’ and ‘held to
maturity’

‘Loans and receivables' and ‘held to maturity'
financial assets are carried at amortized
cost.

59.2Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognized at the
time when the Company becomes a party to

the contractual provisions of the instrument.
These are initially recorded at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

5.9.3 Offsetting of financial assets and

liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
offset and the net amount is reported in
the financial statements, when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized
amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realize the assets and settle
the liabilities simultanegusly.

5.9.4Derecognition of financial assets

and liabilities

Financial assets are derecognized at the time
when the Company loses control of the
contractual rights that comprise the financial
assets. Financial liabilities are derecognized at
the time when they are extinguished i.e.
when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled, or expires. Any gain or
loss on derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities is taken to the profit and loss
account,

59.5Impairment

The Company assesses at each balance sheet
date whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset is impaired. Impairment loss
on all financial assets is recognized in the
profit and loss account. In arriving at the
provision in respect of any diminution in long-
term financial assets, consideration is given
only if there is a permanent impairment in the
value of the financial assets.

5.10 Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the balance
sheet where the Company has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
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date and adjusted to reflect current best
estimate,

5.11 Employees benefit schemes

Gratuity scheme

The Company operates a funded Gratuity Scheme
(the Plan) for eligible employees of the Company:.
The Company's obligation under the scheme is
determined through actuarial valuation carried
out at each year end under the Projected Unit
Credit Method. Remeasurements  which
comprise actuarial gains and losses are
recognized immediately in other comprehensive
income. The Company determines the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit
liability for the period by applying the discount
rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the annual
period to the then defined benefit liability, taking
into account any changes in the net defined
benefit liability during the period as a result of
contribution and benefit payments. Interest
cost and current service cost are recognized in
profit and loss account. The latest actuarial
valuation was conducted at the balance shest
date by a qualified professional firm of actuaries.

Provident fund

The Company cperates an approved defined
contributory provident fund scheme for all
permanent employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made by the Company and the
employees to the fund at the rate of 10 percent
of basic salary.

Compensated absences

The Company accounts for employees’
compensated absences on the basis of
unavailed earned leave balance of each
employee as at the end of the year and the last
drawn salary.

5.12 Taxation

92

Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on
taxable income at the current rates of taxation
after taking into account tax credits and rebates
available, if any. The charge for the current tax
also includes adjustments where necessary,
relating to prior years which arise from
assessments framed [ finalized during the year.

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance
sheet liability method, on temporary differences
at the balance sheet date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
Deferred tax assets are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent
that the temporary differences will reverse
in the future and taxable income will be available
against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Deferred tax
liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part for the deferred tax
asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realized or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or subseqguently
enacted at the balance sheet date,

Sales tax

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized
net of the amount of sales tax except, where
the sales tax incurred on a purchase of assets
or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the sales tax is
recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of
assets or as part of the expense item as
applicable.

5.13 Foreign currency translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into reporting currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into reporting
currency equivalents using year end spot foreign
exchange rates. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities are translated using exchange rate that
existed when the wvalues were determined.
Exchange differences on foreign currency
translations are taken to profit and loss account
currently,

5.14 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when goods are sold
and services are rendered. Goods are treated as
sold when they are delivered and invoiced.
Warranty and insurance claims are recognized
when the claims in respect thereof are lodged
with the respective parties.

Profit on bank accounts is accounted for on
accrual basis using effective interest rate
method.

Mark-up on installment sales receivables is
recognized on the basis of effective interest
rate.

Dividend income is recognized when the
Company's right to receive such dividend is
established.

Commission income is recognized as and when
such service is provided.

Miscellaneous income is recognized on receipt
basis.

5.15 Warranty obligations

The Company accounts for its warranty
obligations on accrual basis.

5.16 Cash and cash equivalents

These are carried at cost and include cash /
cheques in hand and balance with banks.

5.17 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

Dividend declared and appropriations to
reserves made subsequent to balance sheet are
considered non-adjusting events and are
recognized in the financial statements in the
period in which they are approved.

5.18 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended
use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost
of the respective assets. All other borrowing
costs are expensed out in the period they
occur, Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other cost that an entity incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds.

5.19 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in 8 manner
consistent with the internal reporting structure.
Management monitors the operating results
of the business separately for the purpose of
making decisions regarding resource allocation
and performance assessment. All operating
segments’ operating results are reviewed
regularly by the Company's Chief Executive
Officer and Board of Directors to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment
and to assess its performance, and for
which discrete financial information is available.
The business of the Company has two reportable
operating segments i.e. Automobiles segment
and Motorcycles segment.

Segment results that are reported for review
and performance evaluation include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as
those that can be allocated on a reasonable
basis. Unallocated items comprise mainly
corporate assets and liabilities, certain other
operating income and expenses, certain
finance costs, tax assets and liabilities and
income tax expense.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the year to acquire tangible fixed
assets and intangible assets other than goodwill.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Operating fixed assets
Capital work-in-progress

2018 2017
Note  ------——--—-—-- (Rupees In "000) --=-smmanames
6.1 7,820,608 7,068,071
6.5 7,834,219 1,731,931

15,654,827 8,800,002
e RS e
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6.1 Operating fixed assets

The following is a statement of operating fixed assets:
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6.1.1 vendor tooling having book value of Rs. 1,625.38 million (2017: Rs. 1,614.77 million) are in the
possession of seventy five (75) {2017: seventy four (74)} vendors dispersed all over Pakistan. Vendor
wise breakup is summarized below: Gask M;T:;ﬂmmmn Bock sakin
Cost Accumulated depreciation Bock valua 2018 017 2018 207 s n7
and impaiment losses <l M N SR ety e L e 0 ST
2018 2017 2018 m7 2ms 2017
; Wurmtaz Enginears 2013 2813 1437 1.4E7 478 1428
T 111 1= - | 1 ) B e e e il o 2l
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Galaxy Enterpriss 1,186 1,184 543 WE7 801 737 Super Enginsers 520 530 44 05 118 215
Ganaral Tyre 18,025 189025 8830 §,825 10,345 14,200 Supar Tach Autos 1.754 175k 261 487 811 12872
Half Man 16,660 11,573 5145 5107 10,436 B,B56 Synthatic Product 12.610 6068 3065 1987 §.545 §111
Hawics Enginaars 17437 17437 1112 3,564 8,725 13,553 Tarig Enginsaring 5,208 5705 2436 1395 2765 1810
Hytrid Tach 261 28 222 166 g9 1058 Techmen q00 489 168 167 B33 812
Indus Enginesrs 3,308 3808 2,185 1,426 1626 2333 Taghno Fabrik 38802 17,882 1438 1,733 24,187 16,120
Javed Stesl Manufacturing 2,092 208z 1,188 76T a0g 1326 Tachnaling Industries 2EE 288 Tk 43 111 182
Jewad Metal 4,408 &.405 2,108 734 1699 3571 Tecna Pack Talagom 15,904 18,904 6511 2,120 10,393 13,774
Khan Engmnasring Works 4 2 1k 8 10 15 Thal Enginassing 75,00k 36,168 26,574 11,003 48430 25,146
Laads Limitad 281318 242562 91465 33330 189353 204,352 Tharmosabe Industnes 252704 23754 11,140 8,428 164,839 17,288
Masaod Engineering Work 5434 5433 2,204 117 3,225 4,322 United Machanical Industrias 12,353 12 553 5863 3,608 7020 8475
Mehran Commercial Enterprisas L7103 1,703 903 LLx E00 1,150 Yusuf Auto Industries 78587 7867 5417 N 2,550 1,473
Mehran Enginaering Industries &75 475 268 175 208 am Zaib Enginasring 1382 1342 782 473 G40 §1%
Metaling Industrias B7.313 &0,580 28,107 11,785 58,206 68,525 Ziz Enginaaring 5315 1,308 1,885 1,504 3,030 405
MGA Industrias 72,558 12588 b 064 31,987 25518 40,721 2,352,467 2,100,257 927,085 485,487 1,425,382 1,614,770
——————————————————————————————————§———————————————§————————————— - ———————————
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6.2 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows: 6.5 Capital work-in-progress
2018 2017 2018 2017
Ho‘tﬂ, _____________ {RUDEEE ”'I '{.DO] A e e L T B P R R R T [Rupees in IODO} _____________
Cost of goods manufactured 27.1 1,604,580 1,238,812 Plant and machinery 7,774,888 1,171,576
Administrative expenses 29 163,943 122,889 Civil works 59,331 516,583
1,568,523 1,362,801 Advance for capital expenditure i k3,772
e 7,836,219 1,731,931
—_ ————— —— ———

6.3 Impairment loss for the year amounting to Rs. 9,139 million (2017: Nil) has been allocated to cost of
goods manufactured.

: _ 6.5.1 Movement in capital work-in-progress
6.4 The details of property, plant and equipment sold [ disposed of during the year are as follows:

Gain | .
. Acoumulated  Wilen  Syipg (loss)  Modeol  Pariculem PWatonship
S Cost  depreciation UM proeeeds ) fsposal  ofbuyers AN the Opening balance 1,731,831 2,496,091
et o B e NN e s e Additions during the year 8,292,609 3,396,350
Aggregate value of ltems whers .

WOV s greater than Ra. 500,000 Transfer to operating fixed assets (2,190,321) (4,160,510}
Vehices 1,589 51 il 6 1 Negofolions Wil Impex Deales Closing balance 7,834,219 1,731,931
Vehicles ZABL 1,569 BI5 855 B0l N s Will Impex Dealer
Vehicles 1475 =50 536 525 [11] Mansoor Al Employes

Marksn Valys
Wehicles 1475 &l 536 Ll [35] Company N Bkl Arnirar Emphoyes
Policy -
ik P S o i i, L s an 6.6 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of
: the Company are as follows:
Eehioles 1,475 &89 536 500 [ 3] Saha Sullan Employes
G =
Market Valus Total Area
Vehicles 1,311 Tak 557 500 57 Company M.Shahengar Employes Location (In Sq. FL.)
Palicy =
Markat Valus
Plant and machinemy 204 1,481 1314 1,315 J001 :‘:u..:.-: EFU General s Leasehold land DSU-13 Port Qasim 2,789,974
Aggregate value of itents where Leasehold land DSU-32,Port Qasim 658,627
WOV is greater than Re. 500,000 205431 {85,420 30508 61,13 41255 Compar ; . —
Leasehold land DSU-38, Port Qasim 612,236
Leasehold land DSU-13a,Port Qasim 5,227,200
2018 210 804 183,783 26,026 184 158 2 .
210809 103783 26006 75186 _  AO.1SE Land Eastern Industrial Zone, Port Qasim 1,742,400
o e LT L | L e, LS Property situated at Plot No.84f1,Korangi Karachi 53,560
Land at Multan road, Lahore 1,329,669
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7. Intangible Assets

Accumulated Book value

Cost as Cost as Accumulated
Chargs amoetizati at
Yoars :_fm Addtions o WL smodization o g pioprp T h
28 2018 2018 year Poiabhnr (. Wesmey
{Rupees in '000) -
Licenss foes and drawings 3 382,040 - 382,940 239,676 63,673 303,347 79,593
Softwares 3 88,267 16,845 105112 6,200 25,208 1,408 13,704
18 471,207 16,845  bEE052 285876 88,881 174,755 113,707
i H Accumulated
Costas o5t Acoimuiaied s L Book valus
Years J::”: Additions i.:af;k 3'-“"'::‘]“(' IrJ|=I!IE- an'.t\ ;ﬁt]'-"' 1 ";3
X i 4 scember  at 01 lanuany i 3 G r o8 December
017 7 ET i “*;f;"f'* 2017
1 TT e T LT L L
Lcense fees and drawings k| 191,920 191,030 JEZ980 181,257 53,417 139,674 143,766
Softwares 1 83,383 LBEY BE, 757 11477 24,773 45,700 42,067
W17 275,303 195,806 871,207 MIERE £3,130 BEE TG 185,333
7.1 Amortization charge has been allocated as follows:
2018 2017
Note  -—-—-—-— (Rupees in "000) -—-—--——-
Cost of goods manufactured 27.1 63,673 58,417
Administrative expenses 29 25,208 24,773
88,881 83,190
8. Long-Term Investments
Investment In related party (equity accounted)
Investment in associate - unquoted
Tecno Auto Glass Limited (TAG) 8.1 329,274 208,086
Other investments
Available for sale - unquoted
- Arabian Sea Country Club Limited (ASCCL) 8.2 5,000 5,000
- Provision for impairment in the value of Investment (5,000) (5,000}
- Automaotive Testing % Training Centre (Private)
Limited (AT & TC) 8.3 1,250 1,250
- Provision for impairment in the value of investment (1,250) (1,250)
329,274 208,086

100 Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

8.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.1.3

The shareholders of the Company in their extra-ordinary general meeting held on 16 February 2017
approved the proposal for long term equity investment of Rs. 344.4 million for setting up “Tecno Auto
Glass Limited” (TAG) for the manufacturing of automobile glass under Technical Assistance
Agreement with Asahi India Solutions Limited. TAG was incorpeorated on 16 March 2017 and has
not yet commenced commercial operations. The incorporation and principle place of business of TAG
is The Islamic Republic of Pakistan. TAG is a joint venture company between Tecno Pack Telecom
(Private) Limited (TPT) and the Company where the Company holds 40% shareholding and balance
60% is held by the TPT. TAG is an associated company of the Company due to 40% shareholding. Upto
balance sheet date, the Company has made investment of Rs. 344.4 million (2017: Rs. 220 million).
During the year the shares amounting to Rs. 124.4 million (2017: Rs. 220 million) were issued in the
name of the Company through right issue.

The associate's share of loss has been included in these financial statements based on the
unaudited condensedinterimfinancialinformation of theinvestee companyasat 31 December 2018. The
latest annual financial statements of TAG have been prepared on going concern basis. The auditor
of TAG has expressed an unmodified opinion on the financial statements for the year ended 30
lune 2018.

2018 2017
<eemmmmmnme (RUPEES iN '000) =mmmmmmmmmnn

34,640,000 (2017: EE,UDD,UDGJ fl,l"'jl' paid ardinary 81 344,400 220,000

shares of Rs. 10/- each (Shareholding 40%) '

Share of loss of equity accounted investee (15,128) {11,914)
329,274 208,086

329,274 208,086
=R

Summarized balance sheet

Man-current assets 1,658,517 835,459
Current assets 109,542 83,242
Non-current liabilities (906,565 (319,727)
Current liabilities (38,306) (3,760)

823,184 595,214
 ——————

Summarized statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income

Revenue

Loss for the year / period B441 29,785

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss BAkl 29,785
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8.2  Investment in ASCCL (unguoted) represents 0.5 million (2017: 0.5 million) fully paid ordinary shares 11.  Long Term Instaliment Sales Receivables - Unsecured, Considered Good
of Rs. 10/- each, representing 6.45% (2017: 6.45%) of ASCCL’s paid up share capital as at 31 December

2018,

B.3 Investment in AT & TC (unguoted) represents 0.125 million (2017: 0.125 million) fully paid ordinary s _ A
shares of Rs. 10/- each, representing 6.94% (2017: 6.94%) of AT & TC’s paid up share capitalasat31 |} T (Rupees in '000) ~---==-----
December 2018.

8.4 The investment in associated companies have been made in accordance with the requirements of instaliment sales receivables 11.1 & 11.2 704,273 509,639
the Companies.Act, 2017 Less: Unearned finance income (13,558) (28,961)
690,715 LED6TE
9. LDHE'T'E"TI Loans - Secured, Considered Good Less: Provision for doubtful recelvables 11.3 (22,770) {14,903)
667,045 LE5, 775
2018 2017 Less: Current maturity (549,627) (320,996)
Note  --—---—-—(Rupees in '000) --———--- 118,318 164,779
pipeople ket b i Sah Hee! 11.1 This represent balances receivable under various installment sale agreements in equal maonthly
Less: Receivable within one year 16 (4,131) (1,9686) installments. It includes installment sales to customers (motorcycles) and registered vendors of
4,203 2,361 the Company. In case of installment sales to customers, the Company retains the title and registers

the documents of the motorcycles in its name as a security. For installment sales to vendors, vehicles

) _ : are lien marked and registered in joint names of vendor and the Company. Such documents are
9.1 This represents interest free personal loans to employees. These are repayable in maximum thirty six retained in Company’s custody and transferred in the name of customer f vendor after the entire

equal monthly installments and are secured against staff retirement benefits of the employees. dues are cleared. Mark-up on installment sales receivables ranges from 9% to 28% (2017: 12% to
28%) per annum, excluding up to 18 months installment sales which are subject to 0% markup.
However, overdue rentals are subject to additional surcharge. The gross amount and the present

10. Long-Term Deposits, Prepayments and Other Receivables value of the installment sales receivables are as follows:

2018 2017
: Gross amount of installment sales Present value of installment sales
Note - (Rupees in '000}) --—-------- receivables receivables
2018 2017 2018 2017
Deposits 35,295 30,559
memmmmmammmmmn e e e (RUPEES [ "Q0Q) =mmmmmmmm e e e
Prepayments 2,597 122 (Rup )
Less than one year 559,926 363,024 549,627 320,996
Secured, considered good One to five years 164,347 166,615 141,088 159,682
Other receivables from employees 10.1 499571 351,372 704,273 509,639 690,715 480,678
less: Receivable within one year 18 (81,255) (54,734) Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (22,770) {14,903) (22,770) (14,903)
418,316 296,638 681,503 496,736 667,945 465,775
456,208 327,319 _—--
10.1 This represent receivables against vehicles sold tc'_ employees under the Vehicle Ownership 11.2 This includes an overdue portion of installment sales receivables amounting Rs. 5.418 million (2017:
Employee Scheme. These receivables are secured against the personnel guarantees and provident Rs. 4.335 million) out of which Rs. 5.224 million (2017: Rs. 4.034 million) is overdue for more than 6
fund balances of respective employees. These are receivables in maximum eighty-four equal monthly months and fully provided.

installments.
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11.3 Provision for doubtful installment sales receivables 14. Stock-In-Trade
2018 2017
Nota 2018 - -h & N e e e e . I O {Rupeeﬁ in ﬂ|}|:|]| -----------
RS L Raw material and components [inciuding items in 14,484,245 11,785,859
transit Rs. 6,063.46 million (2017: Rs. 5,732.93 million)]
Balance at beginning of the year 14,903 11,603
Provision during the year 29 1,867 3,300 Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolescence
Balance at end of the year P aa - at beginning of the year 31,444 35,639
X - provision / (reversal) for the vear 54,916 (4,195)
12. Deferred Taxation 36.360 31644
14,397 889 11,754,415
Deductible temporary differences arising from:
Provisions 343,886 338,000 Work-in-process 56,425 70,600
Local development costs 42908 17,500 Finished goods 12,929,908 8,409,570
Minimum tax u/s 113 of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 920,980 : Trading stocks [including items in transit Rs. 52.489 million
1,313,774 335,500 (2017: Rs. 742.71 million)] 2,072,049 3,687,259
Taxable temporary differences arising from: Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolescence
Accelerated tax depreciation (161,886) (119,000) - at beginning of the year 55,786 21,740
1,151,888 236,500 - (reversal) / provision for the year (6,571) Lb,046
59,215 65,786
13. Stores, Spares And Loose Tools 2,012,834 3,621,473
Stores 77,058 72,531 29,397,056 23,946,058
Spares 102,203 80,708
26,280 17,498 = . .
Lo0Se touls T —— 14.1 Stock in trade includes Rs. 7,216.59 million (2017: Rs. 8,116.6 million) were in the custody of dealers

and vendors dispersed all over the Pakistan.
Less: Provision for slow moving and obsolete items

- at beginning of the year 55958 ha723 14.2 Raw material and components, work-in-process, finished goods and trading stocks have been written
= provision for the year 211 2,718 11,225 down by Rs. 272.25 million, Rs. 0.016 million, Rs. 1.12 million and Rs. 309.08 million (2017 Nil, Nil, Nil
58,664 55,548 and Rs. 106.38 million) respectively to arrive at net realizable value.
146,878 114,789
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15. Trade Debts 15.3 This includes trade debts of Rs. 170.025 million (2017: Rs. 177.566 million ) which are secured by way
2018 2017 of property mortgages of Rs. 210.400 million (2017: Rs. 217.704 million) and trade debts of Rs.
40.604 million (2017: Rs. 32.355 million) which are secured by way of security deposits
Note mmmmemmmmme= (RUpPEES iN "O00) ==mmmmmmmmn
Considered good ‘ a
B 153 210,629 209,021 15.4 Receivable from related parties
- unsecured 26,909 1,637 2018 2017
Considered doubtful 30,412 60,512 g TR D Dssasssinin
267,950 271,870 e
Suzuki Motor Corporation g8 a2
Less: Provision for doubtful debts 15.1 {3ﬂ.£&12} EED,EIEJ Magyar Suzuki Corporation 285 L56
PT. Suzuki IndoMabil Motor 48 43
237,538 211,358 421 596

15.1 Provision for doubtful trade debts 15.4.1 The maximum aggregate amount receivable from the related parties at the end of any month during

the year are as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year 60,512 88,640
Reversal of provision for doubtful trade debts 29 (30,100) (27,928) Suzuki Motor Corporation 1680 92
Balance at the end of the year 30,612 60,512 Mg Siiziik Comoratis w %56
— —_———
PT. Suzuki IndoMaobil Motor 48 L8

The ageing of trade debts as at the balance sheet date are as under: : :
15.2 geing 15.4.2 The age analysis of trade debts due from related parties are as follows:

2018
Gross Impairment Total 2018 2017
memememsemmme e (Rupees in '000) Gross Impairment Gross Im paiment
Not past due 219,349 (20,625) 198,724 i L
Past due 91-180 days = * 3 Mot past due - - §27 g
Past due 181-360 days 5874 - 5874 Past due over 360 days it ! 168 .
Past due over 360 days 42727 (9,787) 32,940
267,950 (30,512) 237,538 s2l = 398 =
e e .
2017 15.5 The detail of export sales in respect of outstanding trade debts is as follows:
Gross Impairment Total Particulars of Customer Location Mode of 2018 2017
Bl e L e e Security @ -----—---- (Rupees in "000) --=------
Mat past due L 4
pmpd e 01-180 days e 53] R Suzuki Motor Corporation Japan Letter of credit 41,597 36,996
ue 91- . : ;
Magyar Suzuki Corporation i
Past due 181-360 days 6,800 2 6 800 agy ] Hungany Letter of credit 1,909 1,949
Past due over 360 days 50,303 (10,047) 40,256 PT. Suzukl IndoMobil Motor Indonesia Letter of credit = L6
271,870 (60,512) 211,358 _ 43506 38991
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16. Loans And Advances 18. Other Receivables - Considered Good
2018 2017
Note mmmmmmmmm e (RUPEES (0 O00) == mmm e 2018 2017
Loans - secured, considered good 2o A RIS I (R
Current portion of loans to employees 9 4,131 1,966 Due from related parties 18.1 105,263 42,403
Due from vendors for material / components retumed 3,359 9,420
Advances - unsecured, considered good Duty draw back LEG 1,604
- Suppliers / vendors 16.1 30,549 37 168 Expenses recoverable from dealers 55,762 21,107
- Employees - against expenses 5947 3,347 Current portion of long term other receivables 10 81,255 54,734
Accrued profit on bank deposits L& 28,699
36,696 35,515
Dthers 22,451 18,507
e N Lk 268,622 176,474
16.1 These advances do not carry any markup arrangement. 18.1 This represents receivable from following related parties:
17. Trade Deposits and Prepayments Suzuki Motor Corporation 104,569 41,709
PT. Suzuki IndoMobil Motar 694 694
» h ¥
2018 2017 105,263 2,403

-——---——-- (Rupees in '000) --——--------
18.1.1 The maximum aggregate amount receivable from the related parties at the end of any month during

the year are as follows:

Trade deposits 1,972 12,637
Margin with banks against letter of credits and imports 1,077,955 253,261 suzuki Motor Corporation 135,275 41,709
1079927 265,698 PT. Suzuki IndoMobil Motor 684 694
Prepayments; 18.1.2 The age analysis of other receivables due from related parties are as follows:
- Collector of customs 211,030 637,593
2018 017
- Rent 50,430 33,461 -
- Insurance 2,069 2,371 = - = {RUDPEES IN "Q00) ~==nmmmmemmmmmmmmmmmmm o mm
- Others 13,826 26,599 Not past due 97,360 16,373
271,364 700,024 Past due 91-180 days 613 13,000
Past due 181-360 days - - 4,357 -
Past due over 360 da - -
1,357,271 965,722 N ek B
—_— 105,263 - 52, 603 -
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19. Cash and Bank Balances 20.1 The Holding Company held 60,154,091 (2017: 60,154,091) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each,
2018 2017 constituting 73.09% (2017: 73.09%) holding in the Company.
Noter  ccceoc (Rupads i 00f e 20.2 subsequent to year-end the shareholders of the Company in the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting held

on 29 lanuary 2019 have approved the increase of authorized share capital of the Company from Rs.

Cash in hand 8,507 9,332 1,500 million (divided into 150 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each) to Rs. 5,000 million (divided
Cheques in hand 18.1 - 1,254,462 into 500 million ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each).
21. Trade and Other Payables
Cash at bank: 2018 2017
- In deposit accounts - Conventional 18.2 355,164 7,713,688 Note ==mmmmmm=== (RUpPEES in "000) ======n-mmm-
- In a special deposit account - Conventional 19.3 117,955 102,955
- In current accounts 1,033,537 109,115 g EREials o
: : : Bills payable 211 4,008,536 3,755,163
1,506,656 7,925,758 Accrued llabilities 2,320,592 2,075,261
1,516,163 9,189,552 E?rlr?:;iir and technical fee payable to the Holding 2.330,602 908,110
—— e
Mark-up on waiting for delivery of vehicles 3676 3,679
Provision for unexpired free service and warranty
19.1 This represents cheques that were received on the last day and were deposited on the next working day. period 212 8L778 81,197
Dealers’ commission payable 1,063,283 1,082,129
19.2 y Provision for Infrastructure Development Cess 1,202,266 190,783
¥ These carry profits rates ranging from 6.10% to 7.30% (2017: 5.80% to 6.75%) per annum. Workers' Profit Participation Fund 213 1,855 1,660
Workers' Welfare Fund L4642 114,631
19.3 A special account is maintained in respect of security deposits (note 23) in accordance with the Retention money 2 520 6,818
requirements of Section 217 of the Companies Act, 2017. Deposits from employees against purchase of vehicles 1,592 LB,k52
Payable to gratuity fund 21.4 190,583 94,920
194 The Company does not have any Shariah compliant bank deposits  bank balances as at 31 December 2018, Un-earmed income - extended warranty 84,594 81,784
Others 556,033 335,510
E : a 409,566 11,377,815
20. Issued, Subscribed and Paid-Up Share Capital RN m— e
21.1 This include Rs. 1,919.479 million (2017: Rs. 1,861.525 million) due to the Holding Company and Rs.
2018 217 2018 2017 1,951.137 million (2017: Rs. 1,848.936 million) due to other related parties.
—=eee (Number of Shareg) ==---  cmemean (Rupees in '000) ===e=--
21.2 Provision for unexpired free service and warranty period
45,517,401 45,517,401  Fully paid ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each 455,174 455,174
issued for cash Eaas ERP
2,800,000 2,800,000 |ssued for consideration other than cash 28,000 28,000 Hote'  =r—e—{RUPRES IR 10NN S
33,982,450 33,082,450 Issued as fully paid bonus shares 339,825 339,825 2 L - e
tt t i '
82,209851 82,299,851 822,099 822,999 BIIERNC T SRR 0 Yo
e e e E——— IILHEUEFS-E” | provision for the year 8 {2,‘&19} 19,335
Balance at the end of the vear 84,778 87,197

110 Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited Annual Report 2018 111




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2018

21.3 Workers' Profit Participation Fund

2018 2017
MNote  --—-—--—-- (Rupees in "000) —-—-=--m--
Balance at beginning of the year 1,660 17,443
Interest on funds utilized in the Company’s business kY 508 1,587
2,168 19,040
Allocation for the year 30 111,856 301,660
114,024 320,700
Less: Paid during the year 112,169 318,040
Balance at end of the year 1,855 1,660
21.4  Payable to gratuity fund 190,583 94,920

21.4.1 The latest actuarial valuation of gratuity fund was carried out as at 31 December 2018 using the
Projected Unit Credit Method.

21.4.2 Amount recognized in the balance sheet

2018 2017
----------- {Rupees in "000) =-========~

Present value of defined benefit obligation 684,151 536,351
Fair value of plan assets (&95,998) (452,257)
Benafils due bul not paid (payables) 2,430 10,826

100,583 94,920
e

21.4.3 Amounts recognized in total comprehensive income

The following amounts have been charged in respect of these benefits to profit and loss account and other
comprehensive income:;

Component of defined benefit costs recognized in

profit and loss account
Current service cost 47,205 39,736
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 42909 36,228
Return on plan assets (37,758) (33,694)

52,356 42,270
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21.4.4

21.4.5

2018 2017
smmmmmn==== (RUpEES in "000) —=m=rmmam=-
Component of defined benefit costs (re-measurament)
recognized in other comprefensive income
Re-measurements; Actuarial (gain) / loss on obligation

- Gain due to change in financial assumptions (860} (13,B42)
- Loss due to change in experience adjustments 90,825 51,596
90,165 32,754
Return on plan assets excluding interest income (5,583} 2,600
EILEIBE 40,363
Total defined benefit cost recognized in profit and
loss account and other comprehensive income 84,182 40,363
Expected contribution in the following year §2,080 50,793
Weighted average duration of the defined
benefit obligation (years) B g

Movement in net liability recognized in the balance sheet

Opening balance 94 920 61,902

Expense recognized during the year 52,356 42,270
Re-measurement loss recognized in other

comprehensive income 84,182 40,363
Contribution made by the Company during the year (40,875) (49,615)
Closing balance 190,583 94,920

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Opening balance 536,351 k83,074
Current service cost 47,205 39,736
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 2,909 36,228
Benefits due but not paid (payables) (2,430) (10,826)
Benefit paid (20,049) (49,618)
Remeasurement loss on defined benefit obligation 0,165 37,754
Closing balance 684,151 536,351
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21.4.6

21.4.7

21.4.8

21.4.9

Movement in fair value of plan assets

2018 2017
——————————— (Rupees in "000) —----------

Opening balance 452,257 421,172
Contributions (40,875) (49,615)
Return on plan assets 37,758 33,604
Benefit paid 40,875 49,615
Remesurement gain / (loss) on plan assets 5083 (2,609)
Closing balance 4959098 £52,257

Principle actuarial assumption used are as follows

2018 2017
Discount rate used for profit and loss charge 8.25% 2.00%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 13.25% 8.25%
Expected rate of eligible salaries increase in future years 13.25% 8.25%

Mortality rates SLIC 2001 - 2005  SLIC 2001 - 2005

Setback 1 Year Setback 1 Year
Retirement assumption Age GO Age 60
Actual return on plan assets
2018 2017

wmememmnns (RUPEES i 000) ==mmmmmmmn

Interest income on plan assets 37,758 33,694
Remesurement gain/ (loss) on plan assets 5,083 {2,609)
53,741 31,085

Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligation

Type of Members:
- Management 559,748 B42,311
- Non - management 124,403 94,040

684,151 536,351
—
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21410

21411

22.

22.1

Major categories /| composition of plan assets are as follows

2018 2017
——————————— (Rupees in "000) —-—----m--

Government securities 377,602 340,287
Mutual funds 67,800 76,615
Term finance certificates 38,872 34,373
Bank balances 11,7264 982

495,998 452,257
—_—rmy

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Defined banefit obligation
{Incase of changes)

Change in assumption

Discount rate + 1% 650,025 489,601
Discount rate - 1% ?23;355 591iﬂ£u';
Long term salary increase + 1% 723,895 591,232
Long term salary decrease - 1% 650,024 LEB 561

s I s

Short-Term Finance

Short term running finance - conventional 11,310,497 -

The effective rate of mark-up on short-term running finance facility ranges from 8.8% to 10.4%
(2017: 7.26%) per annum. These facilities are renewable subject to payment of repurchase price
on specified dates. The facilities for running finance available from various commercial banks are
for the purpose of meeting working capital requirements. The total limit of short term running
financing facilities available from banks aggregate to Rs. 15,547.76 million (2017: Rs. 4,800 million)
out of which Rs. 4,237.26 million (2017: 4,800 million) remained unutilised as of reporting date. Out
of the total available facilities one of the arrangement amounting Rs. 2,000 million (2017 Nil) is
secured against support from holding company, Suzuki Motor Corporation. Remaining facilities are
secured by way of pari passu hypothecation charge over Company's stock in trade and trade debts,
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22.2

23.

23.1

24,

25.
25.1

25.2

253

25.4

116

The Company does not have any Shariah compliant borrowings as at 31 December 2018.

Security Deposits

2018 2017
Note  ----—--—-- (Rupees in '000) -----------
Deposits against display of vehicles 231 4,006,519 4,430,397
Dealership deposits 19.3 117,955 102,955
Others 97,715 67,200

4,222,249 4,600,552
—

This represents the amount deposited by the dealers as security against the vehicles delivered to
them for display.

Provision For Custom Duties and Sales Tax

Revenue Receipts Auditors - Government of Pakistan conducted an audit in the year 2001 and
alleged that the Company short paid Rs. 120 million on account of custom duties and sales tax
against royalty during the period from July 1997 to February 1999. According to clause 2(d) of
Section 25 of the Customs Act, 1969, payment in the nature of royalty without which goods cannot
be legitimately imported and sold or used in Pakistan are to be included in value for import purpose.
The Company paid Rs. 33.677 million after reconciliation with the Collector - Customs in prior
years. Despite reconciliation, Deputy Collector - Customs adjudicated to pay balance amount of
Rs. 86.323 million. The Company filed an appeal before the Customs Appellate Tribunal which was
disallowed in the year 2015. Consequently, the Company filed Reference Application in the Sindh
High Court which is pending for adjudication. Further, in 2015, the Customs Authorities adjusted Rs.
50.02 million against the above demand.

Contingencies and Commitments

Capital expenditure contracted for but not incurred amounted to Rs. 930.907 million (2017: Rs.
4,408.698 million).

The facilities for opening letters of credit as at 31 December 2018 amounted to Rs. 10,400 million
(2017: 12,608 million) of which the amount remaining unutilized at year end was Rs. 9,778.72
million (2017: 9,835.88 million).

The facilities for opening letters of guarantees as at 31 December 2018 amounted to Rs. 1,728
million (2017: 1,026 million) of which the amount remaining unutilized at December end was Rs.
265.486 million (2017: 60.952 million).

The Company has issued a corporate guarantee on behalf of Tecno Auto Glass Limited, an agsociated
company, amounting to Rs. 600 million (2017: Rs. 600 million) to a commercial bank in relation to
borrowing facilities granted to the associated company.

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

26.

26.1

26.2

26.3

Sales

Manufactured goods
Trading stocks

Manufactured goods

- Vehicles
- Spare parts

Less: Sales tax
Discounts
Sales commission to dealers

Trading stocks

- Vehicles
- Spare parts

Less: Sales tax
Discournts
Sales commission to dealers

Note

26.1
26.2

26.3

These include export sales of Rs. 86.157 million (2017: Rs, 64.435 million).

2018 2017
o b aea {RLIFBGS in "I]Um e s
113,139,598 96,072,235
6,714,300 5,730,376
119,853,898 101,811,611

P

130,866,732 118,685,049
616,176 498,824
140,682,908 118,984,773
20,609,115 17,309,530
1,083,345 426,691
5,850,851 5,176,517
27,343,310 22,912,538
113,139,598 96,072,235
£,717,976 £,377,976
3,039,632 2,322,580
7.757,608 6,700,558
894,432 806,870
11,262 L6851
137,613 107,458
1,043,308 961,180
8,714,300 5,739,376
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27.

118

Cost of Sales

Manufactured goods
Finished goods at beginning of the year
Cost of goods manufactured

Export expenses

Less: Finished goods at end of the year

Trading stocks

Stocks at beginning of the year
Purchases during the year

Less: Stocks at end of the year

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

Note

271

2018

2017

~emmmneenme (RUPES N "000) ==mnmmmmme

8,499,570 6,479,613
111,611,300 89,284,726
15,805 23,468
119,926,765 95,787,807
12,929,908 8,488,570
106,996,857 87,288,237
r—ﬁi'fﬁ‘f's] 1,613,485
4,203,537 6,878,789
7,825,010 8,492,274
2,012,834 3,621,673
5812,176 4,870,801
112,809,033 92,159,038

27.1

Cost of goods manufactured

Note

Raw materials and components at beginning of the year
Purchases during the year 27.1.1

Less: Raw materials and components at end of the year
Raw materials and components consumed

Stores and spares consumed
Provision for slow moving and obsolete

stores, spares and loose tools 13
Utilities
Vehicle running expenses
Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1.2
Qutsourced job contractor charges
Rent, rates and taxes
Travelling
Training
Insurance
Repairs and maintenance
Royalty 27.1.3
Technical fee
Travelling expenses of supervisors
(Reversal) f provision of provincial sales tax on

royalty and technical fees
Depreciation 6.2
Impairment loss 6.3
Amortization 7.1
Conveyance and transportation
Communication
Hired security guards services
Local development costs
Printing and stationery
Others

Add: Work-in-process at beginning of the year
Less: Work-in-process at end of the year

Less: Cost of own used vehicles

2018

2017

memmmmmenee (RUPES N "000) =-mnmnmmee

11,754,415 8,112,011
106,297,839 86,441,330
118,052,254 94,553,341
14,397,889 11,754,415
103,654,365 82,798,926
72,584 67,347
2,716 11,225
445,511 401,055
23,764 23,023
1,778,470 1,291,061
1,060,684 958,360
25,091 19,660
118,376 65,002
34,305 17,915
10,000 9,650
520,084 461,045
1,597,221 1,231,754
330,526 222,621
1,609 2,792
(160,094) 160,094
1,404,580 1,239,912
9,139 =
63,673 58,417
290,013 298,750
3,064 2,966
15,750 14,921
215,892 39,143
1,212 587
21,494 10,967
7,885,664 6,609,147
111,540,029 89,408,073
70,600 83,499
111,610,629 89,491,572
56,425 70,600
111,554,204 89,420,972
142,814 136,246
111,611,390 89,284,726
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27.1.1 Purchases are stated net of proceeds from the sale of packing materials Rs. 345.267 million (2017: Rs. 184.219
million).

27.1.2 This includes Rs. 29.153 million (2017: Rs. 21.231 million) and Rs. 31.869 million (2017: Rs. 26.320 million) in
respect of provident fund and gratuity fund respectively.

27.1.3 This represents royalty payable to the Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation lapan as per the royalty
agreement duly registered with the State Bank of Pakistan.

28. Distribution and Selling Costs

2018 2017

Note -=-———== {RUpees in "000) -———-—---

Transportation and handling charges 1,715,380 1,386,950

Advertising and sales promotion 634 499 1,045,997

Free service 242,302 223,901

Warranty claims 60,334 75,765
(Reversal against) / provision for unexpired free service

and warranty period 212 (2,419) 15,335

Royalty on trading spare parts 28.1 58 246 45,808

(Reversal) f provision of provincial sales tax on
royalty and technical fees (2,699) 2,599
2,706,853 2,804,256

28.1 This represents rovalty payable to Holding Company, Suzuki Motor Corporation Japan as per the royalty
agreement duly registered with the State Bank of Pakistan.

29. Administrative Expenses

2018 2017

Noteé — =--cccaaeee (Rupees in "000) ======ca=ax
Salaries, wages and other benefits 291 1,105,686 772,697
Qutsourced job contractor charges 269 043 176,957
Travelling 112,312 92,504
Training L8697 9,722
Hired security guards senvices L8589 38,021
Rent, rates and taxes 102,719 83,548
Utilities 29884 23,481
Vehicle running expense 70,830 56,181
Insurance 16,250 12,782
Repairs and maintenance 80,754 L3258
Depreciation 6.2 163,963 122,888

120 Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

29.1

29.2

2018 2017
Note —===sm—e—— (Rupees in "000) ----—--m=--
Amortization 7.1 25,208 26,773
Auditors’ remuneration 29.2 3,564 3,683
Legal and professional charges 12,478 15,287
Conveyance and transportation 117,336 54,515
Entertainment 130 2,134
Celebration of special events 38,107 14,538
Printing and stationery L0857 31,274
Cammunication 17,7117 16,0890
Directors' fees 6,395 150
Provision / (reversal) for doubtful:
- installment sales receivables 11.3 71.867 3,300
- trade debts 15.1 (30,100) (27,928)
- other receivables - 3,255
Trade debts written-off 71 8a7
Eﬁ :: g:;er software license fee and ERP maintenance 13,337 10,306
Corporate Social Responsibility 29.3 10,614 3,932
Others 8,023 11,529
2,301,080 1,599,815

This includes Rs. 17.712 million {2017: Rs. 12.350 million) and Rs. 20.486 million (2017: Rs. 15.950 million) in
respect of defined contributory provident fund and gratuity fund respectively.

Auditors' remuneration
2018 2017

——————————— (Rupees in '000) ~----------

Audit fee 1,500 1,500
Half-yearly review 450 £50
Fee for corporate governance certificate 110 110
Fee for special certifications 90 1,000
Qut of pocket expenses 247 204
Sindh sales tax 317 k19

3,564 3,683
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29.3 Contribution for Corporate Social Responsibility to the following organizations exceed Rs. 500,000

2018 2017
~=-=--=---- [Rupees in "000) -----------

Burns Central Civil Hospital 1,164 -
GDA Hospital Gawadar 2578 -
Joint Committee of Ghulkin and Passu 7126 -
NED University G656 9497
Uqaily Family & Friends Association 766 -
Karachi Vocational Training Centre 1,334 -
Indus Hospital - 730
7,224 1,727

29.3.1 None ofthe donations were made to any donee in which a director or his spouse had any interest at any time

during the year,

30. Other Expenses

2018 2017
Note === (RUpees in '000) ~———=~---
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 21.3 111,856 301,660
Workers' Wealfare Fund 42,358 112,337
154,204 £13,997
31. Other Income
Income from financial assets
Profit on bank accounts 311 368411 695,180
Commission income 1.2 3,000 500
Finance income on installment sales 20,757 42,242
386,168 737,922
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of fixed assets 6.4 L9, 158 14,258
Extended warranty income 30,960 50,833
Scrap sales 16,758 11,717
Miscellaneous income 72,390 40,981
169,775 126,789
565,943 864,711
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31.1

31.2

32.

32.1

33.

33.1

The Company has not earned any profit from Shariah compliant bank deposits / bank balances during the year
ended 31 December 2018,

This represent commission income on corporate guarantes provided to a commercial bank on behalf of Tecno
Auto Glass Limited, associated company, amounting to Rs. 600 million (2017 Rs. 600 million) in relation to
borrowing facilities granted to the associated company.

Finance Costs
Note 2018 2017
----------- (Rupees in "000) =====mn==ux

Mark=up on short=-term running finance 321 185,319 E
Markup on Waorkers' Profit Participation Fund 21.3 508 1,597
Exchange loss - net 102,157 38,634
Bank charges 74,539 27,857

3azi523 68,088

The Company has not paid any markup on Islamic mode of financing during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Taxation
2018 2017
m=m=———-= (Rupees in "000) --—-—-----
Current
- for the year 1,764,746 1,465,000
- prior year (44,530) 331,143
Deferred (915,388) (2,750)
784,828 1,793,393
Reconciliation between tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit far the year before taxation 2,082 936 5,619,214
Corporate tax rate 29% 0%
Tax on accounting profit at applicable rate 604,052 1,685,764
Tax effect of,
= prior year (44,530) 331,143
- tax rebate on additions under section G658 under
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (97,101) (350,6478)
- income assessed under Final Tax Regime 17,007 43,917
- effect of super tax 212,120 145,000
- tax effect of permanent differences 70,570 12,000
- others 22,710 (73,953)
784828 1793393
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33.2

33.2.1

34.

34.1

34.2

Finance Act, 2018 enacted gradual reduction in the corporate tax rates for companies from 20% to 25% over
a period of five years. The Company computes tax expense based on the generally accepted interpretation of
the tax laws to ensure that the sufficient provision for the purpose of taxation is available. Provision for the
current year has been made on the basis of minimum tax on turnover and final tax regime under Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001. The tax provision made in the financial statements is sufficient. A comparison of last three
years of income tax provision with tax assessed is presented below:

2017 2016 2015
————————————— {Rupees in '000) ----—-------
Income tax provision for the year (as per accounts) 1,465,000 1,688,000 3,000,000
Income tax as per tax assessment ﬁﬁﬁ

The differences mainly pertains to super tax provisions booked for previous years as the amendments became
effective retrospectively through Finance Act of subsequent periods.

Earnings Per Share - Basic and Diluted 2018 2017
—mmmmmeemee- (RUpees in '000) ~=-mmnmmmnm

Basic

Profit for the year 1,298,108 3,825,821
———————————————————— ——————————————————————

(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in

issue during the year £2,299,851 82,299,851
T ==
(Rupees)
Basic eamings per share 1577 4649

& diluted earnings per share has not been presented as the Company did not have any convertible instruments
in issue as at balance sheet date which would have any effect on the earnings per share if the option to
convert is exercised.
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35.

35.1

Cash Generated From Operations
Note

Profit before taxation

Adjustments for non cash charges and other items;
Depreciation

Impairment loss

Amortization

Gain on disposal of fixed assets

Share of loss of equity accounted investee

Profit on bank accounts

Finance costs

Working capital changes 351

Working capital changes

{Increase) | decrease in current assets:

Stores, spares and loose tools

Stock in trade

Current partion of long-term installment sales receivables
Trade debts

Loans and advances

Trade deposits and short-term prepayments

Other receivables

Sales tax and excise duty adjustable

Increase [ (decrease) in currant liahilities:
Trade and other payables

Security deposits

Advance from customers

2018

2017

sesmmeneees (Rupees in "000) ===eemmmaas

2,082,936 5,619,214
1,568,523 1,362,801
9,139 .
88,881 83,190
{69,158) (14,258)
3,212 11,914
(368,411) (695,180)
262,523 68,088
1,614,709 816,555
(10,007,326) 2,752,809
(6,399,681) 9,188,578
(32,089) (3,783)
(5,450,998) (7,657,450)
(228,631) (29,742)
(26,180) 993,911
{3,148) 125,538
(391,549) (888,593)
(120,801) 19,531
(3,226,311) 507,616
(9,479,705) (6,932,972)
3,631,423 5,051,917
(993,174) 927,388
(3,055,870) 3,706,476
(617,621) 9,685,781
(10,097,326) 2,752,809
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i i i 36.1 Outstanding balances with related parties as at year end have been included in trade debts, other recaivables
36. Transactions With Related Parties and trade and other payables respectively. These are settled in ordinary course of business.
Related parties of the Company include the Holding Company and related group companies, local associated " t Basi jati Aggregate % of
companies, staff retirement funds, directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties 36.2 s of i Shareholding
are entered into at commercial terms, as per the terms of employment and actuarial advice, as the case
may be. Suzuki Motor Corparation Holding Company 73.09%
PT. Suzuki Indomobil Motor Group Company E‘A
Amount due from and to related parties and remuneration of directors and executives are disclosed in the Thai Suzuki Motor Co. Limited Group Company N/A
relevant notes to the financial statements. Details of transactions and balances with related parties, other liangmen Dachangjiang Group Co. Limited Group Company n
than those which have been specifically disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are as follows: Changzhou Haojue Suzuki Motor c.y el Ca. Limited Group Company _N_A
3 *
Magyar Suzuki Corporation Limited Group Company mﬁ
Holding Other related Suzuki Motor (Thailand) Co. Limited Group Company N/A
Total
Company parties linan Qingai Motoreyele Co. Limited Group Company N/A
Tt T — (Rupees in '000) -=----=--m-m= Suzuki Deutschland Group Company NA
For the year ended 31 D mber 2018 Vietnam Suzuki Corporation Group Company mﬂ.
Suzuki Italia S.PA. Group Company r_i‘A
Purchases of components 27,948,226 26,254,787 54,201,013 Tecno Auto Glass Limited Associate Company Eﬁ
Purchases of operating fixed assets 3,569,530 62 3,560,592
Export sales 41,587 23,700 65,297 36.3 Following are the details of related parties incorporated outside Pakistan, with whom the country had entered
Royalties and technical fee 1,970,877 z 1,970,877 into transactions or had agreements or arrangements in place during the year.
Travelling expanses of supanvisors 706 - 706 LR
L]
Staff retirement benefits v Registered Country of Operational  Aggregate % of
36.6 99,222 99,222 Name of the related party Adnss " et um Spat Shareholding
Commission Income from Corporate Guarantes = 3,000 3,000 i
Remuneration to key managemsant parsonnel g 158,238 158,238 Suzuki Motor Corparation aﬁaﬁtﬁuh;rﬁ;ﬁ;ﬂmu lapan Tl;:]l:ll:ll:u Active 13.09%
Sales promotional expensas and developmeant 106 358 1276 107 634 City.
BXpanses ( i ; PT. Suzuki Indemebil Motor IL Raya Bekasi KM 19 Indonesia  Sugiyama  Active NJA
RT 009 R 01, Kel Rawa Shinichiro
Tarate, Kec Cakung
Holding Other related Pulogadung, lakarta Timur.
Compan arties ot
pany p Thai Suzuki Motor Co. Limited ag.fl Rgngsit—ﬂnhgkharﬂic Thailand Tsuneo Active Ni&
i ad, Bungyeatho, . .+
Note  ------—--—-- (Rup&es in '000) ~~--------- - Thanvaburl. Pathumthani Ml
12130,
rarthe veahegied S5 Hecempar 294¢ Jiangmen Dachangliang Group No.5 Jiandabei China  JamesTei  Active NJA
Purchases of components 26,628,989 20,670,455 L6 899 L4k Co. Limited gﬂ; JI_I;d n:‘;rrn:n. —_—
Purchases of operating fixed assets 388,089 187,485 575,574 Magyar Suzuki Corporation Limited 2500 Esztergom, Schweidael Hungary Tamas Active MfA
Purchases of intangible assets 191,020 5 191,020 J.ut 52/A, 2501, Esztergom. Tamnai
Export sales 36,996 20,738 57,735 Suzuki Motor (Thailand) Co. Limited i%ﬂi{ldghr?;ﬂ?é?'ﬁ?:m hailand :'ll;::r[: Active N.I':lk .
Rovalties and technical fee 1,579,870 £ 1,579,870 " 21140, .

: , linan Qingqi Motorcycle Co, Limited Mo, 1999, Kechuang Road, China Sokenori Active HiA
Travelling expenses of supervisors 6,606 . 6,606 Suncun Area, Hi-Tech Masuda P —
Staff retirement benefits Development Zone, linan.

36.4 J 76,852 76,852 Suzuki Deutschland Suzuki Deutschland, 64625 Germany Masato Active NJA
Commission income from Corporate Guarantee . 500 500 Bensheim Atsumi S —
Sales promotional expenses and development expenses 22,578 - 22578 Suzuki Italia 5.PA Eﬁ’s::'u" tﬁatall. Kennedy, 12, Italy Jurya Active A
10070 Zona |ndustriale di Kumataki ——
Robassomaro TO.
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36.3.1 The latest available audit report of Suzuki Motor Corporation ("Holding Company”) for the year ended 31 March
2018 is unmodified. For ather Group companies, the information is not publicly available as these are unlisted
companies in different jurisdictions.

36.4 Al investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the
Companies Act 2017 and the conditions specified thereunder.

37. Plant Capacity and Actual Production

2018 2017

{Number of vehicles)

Plant capacity - Motorcar {(double shifts basis) 150,000 150,000
[ ]
Plant capacity - Motorcycle (double shifts basis) 44,000 56,000
e
Actual production - Motorcar 143,239 132,725
Actual production - Motorcycle 23,014 19,603
371 Under utilization of capacity was due to lower demand of certain products.

38. Remuneration of Executives, Directors and Chief Executive

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements in respect of remuneration including all benefits
to chief executive, directors and executives of the Company are as follows:

2018 207

bescrton o, e BBt s (TR oo S ane
srrm e s sm e m mmr e emn [0 J00g (1 ()] e e v s e —————
Direciors fees - 2,290 - - - - 196 -
Maragerial remuneration 11680 E 14,523 236,523 14,587 - 16,380 128419
Baonus 3457 = B, A5 152,369 6,182 = B313 12,308
Retire rent benefils - - - 15,154 - - - 180
Reimbursable expense 1 5,105 L | 2,381 65 = 632 1,768
142 6,395 Pl k-] §13,026 0888 - 19,541 11,363

_——— e _—m—— e —_———— —_ —_— —_ —
Rumber of persons 1 5 i 58 I 5 2 i3
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38.1

38.2

39.

39.1

The directars, chief executive and certain executives of the Company are provided with free use of Company
maintained cars and accommaodations,

Comparative figures have been adjusted to reflect changes in the definition of executive as per Companies
Act, 2017,

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risk such as market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Company's averall risk management focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’'s financial performance. The Company's Board of
Directors oversees the management of these risk which are summarized below;

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices, Market risk comprises of interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk.

(i) Interestrate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. As of the balance sheet date, the Company had
following interest bearing financial instruments:;

2018 2017
smmemmecea= (Rupees in "000) =====eeemn-
Fixed rate financial instruments
Installment sales receivables B6T,945 465,775
Bank balances in deposit accounts 473,119 7,816,643

1,141,064 8,282 418

Variable rate financial instrumants

The Company holds various variable rate financial instruments amounting to Rs. 11,310 million (2017:
Nil} exposing the Company to cash flow interest rate risk, A change of 100 basis peints as at 31
December 2018 would have increased / (decreased) profit after tax and equity for the yvear by Rs.
19.238 million (2017: Nil). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency
rates, remain constant.

Falr value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate Instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit and
loss account.
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At December 31, 2013 if Pak Rupee had depreciated / appreciated by 1% against IPY, US Dallar, RMB, EUR, SGD
and GEP with all other variables held constant, Company's profit before tax would have been Rs. 27,553 million
(2017: Rs. 28.765 million) higher [ lower as a result of exchange loss f gain on translation of foreign currency

(ii) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate denominated financial instruments.
due to changes in foreign exchange rates, It arises where receivables and payables exist due to
transactions in foreign currency. Open exposures are vigorously monitored. The Company is exposed Other price risk

to such risk in respect of the following: : ) . ) : ¢
R . Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate

because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk). The
2018 2017 Company is not exposed to other price risk.

JPY - Japanese Yen 39.1.1 Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Bills payable 1,526,811 1,903,314
Royalty and technical fees payable to the Holding Company 1,100,489 468,764 i

Due from related parties (20,202) (8,256) pidico o o o
Net exposure - IPY in '000 2,607,098 2,363,802 Uniiaglian Maring peafit

S ———— [';|_,3._.._--_, - _.J:_: S ————

UsD - Us Dollar

Bills payable 14,578 16,811
) Balance ge ot 1 January 201% - & 27882121 27882121
Export sales receivables (&) (834) d
r in " 14,57 15,977
Net exposure - USD in "000 4,574 i Changes from financing cash flows
Dividend paid - - {1.522.619) (1.622,619)
Total changes from financing activities - - {1,522.619) (1.522.619)
RMB - Chinese Ren-Min-Bi Other changss - intersst cost
Bills payable in "000 2,710 1,432 mtarsst axpanss - 186,319 - 185310
EUR - Euros Changes in running finance 11,310,497 - - 11,310,497
. Total loan related other changes 11,310,497 121,027 -
Bills payable in "000 5 53 o A T chang 11,641,524
—-—.—_—PY———,.,,,,,,,,.s
Total equity related other changes - - 1,205,768 1,205,768
SGD - Singapore Dollar
Bills payable in "000 - 13 Balance as at 31 December 2018 11,310,497 131,027 27,565,270 39,006,794

GEP - Great Britain pound
Bills payable in "000 7 .
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Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk which arises with the possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
discharge its obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss. The Company attempts to control
credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific counterparties and continually
assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties.

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities
or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate the
relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry.

The Company seeks to minimize the credit risk exposure through having exposures only to customers
considerad credit worthy, aliowing advances to vendors / suppliers who have long standing with Company and
placing deposits with banks with good rating. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

2018 2017

==-======== (RUpees in '000) --—=-----—

Trade debts 237,538 211,358
Instaliment sales receivable 667,945 L65,775
Long-term loans 4,203 2,361
Loans and advances 40,627 37,481
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 1,357,271 965,722
Other receivables 268,622 176,474
Bank balances 1,506,656 7,925,758

4,082,862 9,784,929

Trade debts and installment sales receivables

For trade debts and installment sales receivables, internal risk assessment process determines the credit
quality of the customers. Taking into account their past experience, consideration of financial position, past
track records and recoveries, the Company believes that appropriate impairment has been made and no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of unprovided amounts as there are reasonable grounds to
believe that the amounts will be recovered in due course of time. When the recovery of the amount is
considerad uncertain by the management, a provision is made for the same. Known bad debts are written-off
when they are identified.

Bank balances

Bank balances are held with reputable banks with high quality credit ratings. At year end, the Company has
bank balances with banks having credit ratings ranging from 41+ to AL

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

39.3

39.4

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able ta meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The
Company applies the prudent risk management policies by maintaining sufficient cash and bank balances and
by keeping committed credit lines. The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial
liahilities at the following reporting dates:

. 4 mas Tl
e (Rupees in '000) -----—----

31 December 2018
Trade and other payables 13,478,890 930,676 14,409,566
Advances from customers 1,780,428 495,650 2,276,078
Deposits against display of vehicles 263,648 3,742,871 4,006,519
Unclaimed dividend 22,295 - 22,295
Security deposits - 215,730 215,730

15,545,261 5,384,927 20,930,188
31 December 2017
Trade and other payvables 9,798,258 1,579,557 11,377,815
Advances from customers 2,864,778 2,467,170 5,331,948
Deposits against display of vehicles 50,651 4,379,746 4,630,397
Unclaimed dividend 14,137 - 14,137
Security deposits - 170,155 170,155

12,727,824 8,596,628 21,324,452

Fair value of financial instruments

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are obsendable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.2. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3. inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities,
including their levels in the fair value higrarchy.
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2018
Carrying amount Faiir vadue
Fair walue-
and liabilit financial Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3
recenables liabilities
(Rupees in *000) --———--—-—mommmmmeeeee
Financial assets not measured at
Tair valua
Trade debts 237,538 - i = = -
Installment sales receivable GGT, 945 - - - - -
Long-term loans 6,203 - - - - -
Loans and advances &0,627 - = = = -
Trade deposits and short
e prepaymeints 1,357,271 - - - - -
Other receivables 268,622 = = - - -
Cash and bank balances 1,516,163 - - - -
Finamncial liabilities not measured at
fair value
Trade and other payables - - 16,608,566 - - -
Short-term finance - - 11,310,687 - - -
Security deposits - - §,222,259
Unelaimed dividend - - 22,295 - - -
2017
Carying amauni Fair valie
Liagity e Lt hr
SRR TENTEE 5 o r
and financia Lewel 1 Lewel 2 Level 3
lisbilites
receiables liahities
———— [Rup@as in "BI0] =mmm e s o s mme oo
Financial assets not measured at
fair value
Trade debts 211,358 - . - -
Instaliment sales recenahbls LG5 715 - - - -
Long-term boang 2,361 - - - - -
Loans and advances T481
Trade deposits and shor
term prepaymnts G5 TFI2 = = = - =
Otheer receivables 176,474 -
Cash and bank balances 4,189,582 - - - - -
Financial liabilities not measured at
fair value
Trade and other payables - - 11371815 - - -
Security deposits . . 4,600,552 - -
Unglamed dividend - - 14,137 - -

The estimated fair value of all financial assets and liabilities is considered not significantly different from
carrying values as the items are either short-term in nature or periodically repriced.

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

41.

41.1

Capital Risk Management

The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maintain healthy capital ratios, strong
credit rating and optimal capital structures in order to ensure ample availability of finance for its existing and
potential investment projects, to maximize sharehalder value and reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to sharenolders or issue new shares. The Company is currently
financing its operations through equity and short=term finance.

Segment Information

The activities of the Company have been grouped into two segments of related products (e automobile and
motorcycles as follows:

= The Automobile segment includes sales of own manufactured vehicles and spare parts and trading vehicles
and spare parts.

- The Motoreycles segment includes sales of own manufactured vehicles and spare parts and trading vehicles
and spare parts.

Segment revenue and results

Following is an analysis of the Company®s revenue and results by reportable segment

Autormobile  Motorcycle Total Histomohike Mabo ey ke [ F

-------------------------------- (Rupees in "DO0) e

Net sales IG666GT5. 1288322 (J19851ESR 99257508 2554102 101311611
Gross profit G, 124,655 320,230 1068865 9,457,590 194 983 4,652,573
Digtribution expenses [2,6R5,967) (B0,891) [216853) [2,775.083) [29,173) [2B0& 256]
Adminkstration expanses [2,085,481) [203,569) [2302,080) [1,481,995) (117820) ([1,589.815)
Operating prafit 1.878.382 57,750 036,832 5,200,512 AT.840 5,248,502
Other incame 512,901 5,042 BG5S 943 815,554 43 757 254,711
Finance cost | 360,804) [1.82.8) [362.523) [66,851) [1,237) [62,083]
Segment results aﬂi‘ii?i 107,873 2,250,352 5.!-“&5 95510 6,045,125
[ = —-—.

Unallocated corporate expenses
Qiker opersting axpenses {150,204 )
Share of loss of equity accounted investes 14,212]
Taxation t?ﬂ-ﬁ,ﬂ?ﬂ]

[382,248]
Profit after tax 1,298,108

Revenue from sale of Automaobiles represent 98% (2017: 98%) of the gross sales of the Company.

99.99% (2017: 99.99%) of the gross sales of the Company are made to customers located in Pakistan.

All non-current assets of the Company at 31 December 2018 are located in Pakistan.

The Company's customer base is diverse with no single customer accounting for more than 10% of sales.
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Pattern of Shareholding
As at December 31, 2018
No. of Shareholders Shareholdings "Slab Total Shares Held No. of Shareholders Shareholdings "Slab Total Shares Held

4034 1 to 100 93,715 1 210001 to 215000 214,500

1245 101 to 500 369,000 2 230001 to 235000 459,250
534 501 to 1000 425,427 1 245001 to 250000 250,000

478 1001 to 5000 1,074,974 1 255001 to 260000 255,900
79 5001 to 10000 603,058 1 270001 to 275000 271,900
28 10001 to 15000 354,637 1 335001 to 340000 340,000
13 15001 to 20000 227,784 1 380001 to 385000 383,200
8 20001 to 25000 184,109 1 450001 to 455000 454,400
3 25001 to 30000 82,125 1 565001 to 570000 568,523
5 30001 to 35000 165,475 1 595001 to 600000 $00,000
4 35001 to 40000 151,239 1 670001 to 675000 674,400
5 40001 to 45000 214,019 1 705001 to 710000 705,200
3 45001 to 50000 147,850 1 805001 to 810000 805,250
1 50001 to 55000 52,350 1 900001 to 905000 902,860
2 65001 to 70000 134,330 1 1120001 to 1125000 1,122,140
1 70001 to 75000 70,400 1 1160001 to 1165000 1,160,574
1 75001 to 80000 75,800 1 1505001 to 1510000 1,506,600
2 80001 to 85000 166,569 1 2140001 to 2145000 2,142,200
Z B5001 to 80000 177,700 1 3285001 to 3290000 3,287,600
1 90001 to 95000 92,150 1 59250001 to 59255000 59,251,231
5 85001 to 100000 495,050 6,485 82,299,851
2 100001 to 105000 201,100
1 110001 to 115000 114,400
1 130001 to 135000 135,000
1 155001 to 160000 158,600
i 180001 to 185000 367,262
3 185001 to 200000 600,000
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Pattern of Shareholding

As at December 31, 2018

Categories of Shareholders

Shareholders Shares Held Percentage

Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children

MOIN M FUDDA

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

M/S. SUZUKI MOTOR CORPORATION

Executives

Public Sector Companies and Corporations

Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking
finance companies, insurance companies, takaful,
modarabas and pension funds

Mutual Funds
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT-EQUITY MARKET OPPORTUNITY FUND
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC STOCK FUND

CODC-TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN ISLAMIC RET. SAV.
FUND-EQUITY SUB FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE UBL RETIREMENT SAVINGS
FUND - EQUITY SUB FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST
CDC - TRUSTEE NIT ISLAMIC EQUITY FUND

MCBFSL TRUSTEE ABL ISLAMIC DEDICATED STOCK FUND
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ASSET ALLOCATION FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP ISLAMIC DEDICATED EQUITY FUND

CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST CAPITAL MUTUAL FUND
CDC TRUSTEE - MEEZAN DEDICATED EQUITY FUND
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25

500

60,154,091

906,645

2,205,740

568,523
100

150

200
1,122,140
70,400
8,550

100

BB

10,000
100

0.00

73.08

0.00

110

268

0.69
0.00

0.00

0.00
136
0.08
0.01
0.00
0.00
0.01
0.00

Categories of Shareholders Shareholders Shares Held Percentage
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN BALANCED FUND 1 60 0.00
CDC - TRUSTEE FIRST DAWOOD MUTUAL FUND 1 1,000 0.00
CDC - TRUSTEE ALFALAH GHP VALUE FUND 1 100 0.00
CDC - TRUSTEE AKD INDEX TRACKER FUND 1 4,720 0.01
CDC - TRUSTEE AL MEEZAN MUTUAL FUND 1 200 0.00
CDC - TRUSTEE MEEZAN ISLAMIC FUND 1 66,700 0.08
CDC - TRUSTEE AL-AMEEN SHARIAH STOCK FUND 1 50 0.00
CDC - TRUSTEE NAFA STOCK FUND 1 50 0.00
CDC - TRUSTEE KSE MEEZAN INDEX FUND 1 26,700 0.03
MCBFSL - TRUSTEE PAK OMAN ISLAMIC ASSET
ALLOCATION FUND 1 1,350 0.00
General Public
a. Local 6295 6,343,610 7
b. Fareign 6 21,951 0.03
Foreign Companies 20 9,231,147 11.22
Others 106 1,554,881 1.89
Totals 6485 82,299,851 100.00
Share holders holding 5% or more Shares Held Percentage
M/5. SUZUKI MOTOR CORPORATION 60,154,091 73.09
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Dealer Network
Azad Kashmir Jhelum 1
Dadyal 1 Kamonki 1
Kotli 1 kasur 1
Mirpur 1 Khanewal 1
Muzaffarabad 1 Khanpur 1 3 ,.u g 4-‘.:
Kharian 1 3 ;-‘5 '" s
Baluchistan Khushab 1 53 J: p ,‘J i
Gwadar 1 Kot Addu 1 r ‘r\ @:JJ
Kuchlak 1 Lahore 18 .«_“ = J ;‘:;J ':,1.':': ":7_ et
Quetta 3 Layyah 1 e TN o B u“.,{
Lodhran 1 2 -J"-"‘ ST I e
Khyber Pakhtun Khwa Mandi Bahauddin 1 S e iF 3";:"' SYE. 02 L Fy
Abbottabad 1 Mianchannu 1 JJ o rﬁ,; ESJ‘:* £ "r-_ ',"}‘-'i.rf-' “J
Battagram 1 Mianwali 1 E e NS BN P
Charsadda 2 Multan 6 o @ iy . ‘* ot 3 £y ‘;
D.1Khan 1 Narowal 1 b e r 0 3
Dir 1 Okara 1 "’_ “"""*‘ O rl g’ji
Gilgit 1 Pakpattan 1 J'F ';53.:—#0 "‘ ﬁ S
Haripur 1 Pasrur 1 Hieatil el Al e -J FRR R
Haveliyan 1 Rahirmyar khan . Tt 3 (l':' t}_:"' . f@""‘ e T 'F 2
Kohat 1 Rajanpur 1 P ':'H"' ",,.")H ...u O ,-'l J
Mansehra 1 Rawalpindi A :;":",”+ I r -.I“-;‘
Mardan 1 Sadigabad 1 39 Y ?‘;"@.ﬁ ~ R = 5 4
Nowshera 1 Sahiwal 5 g W e VR LAY j__ O frs ot @‘;3
Peshawar 4 Sarghodha 1 "_,;@f,-_‘,:. Nt @ 1:_!"" v _rj‘j";*‘u;l) :L-j‘r_;f ]
Swabi 1 Sheikhupura 1 TS o Yop e J,-,;r DG T ) A A
Swat 1 Shorkot 1 s ) A Sre rad :i:@,ju;;«': €ladt ) 50
Sialkot 2 B, o O i MRS ey e ey
- 2 B . + i Tep st 1} e
Punjab Talagang 1 SR € R Sy N
Alipur 1 Taxila 1 2l S @ H@;j o
Bahawalnagar 1 Toba Tek Singh 1 @;;- o : ) N " = J A
Bahawalpur i Vehari 1 Fype TSI Py -
Bhakkar 1 Wazirabad 1 4f§97(5 fiﬂ:ﬂ;'gy ‘:'-r, ALY
Burewala i 4 e R ‘_)_'5' @:J P 939 p 4;
Chakwal 1 Sindh AR RIS SR ((: REE
Chichawatni 1 Badin 1 e i . ,_r;':.... ; _) ; ;r:.t
Chiniot 1 Hyderabad 5 2 Y s/ S )0y
Chishtian 1 Karachi 19 s ._i"'--' R
Chunian 1 Larkana 1 "; j SRR L e <
D.G.Khan 1 Makli 1
Daska 1 Mirpur Khas 1
Dipalpur 1 Moro 1
Faisalabad 3 Nawabshah 1
Gujar khan 1 Sukkur 3
Gujranwala 1 Tando Allahyar 1
Gujrat 1
Islamabad 6 Grand Total 149
Jhang 1 :
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IfWe
of

(Full Address)
being member(s) of Pak Suzuki Motor Co. Limited and holder of shares under Folio
No andfor CDC participant I.D. No. and Sub Account
No. hereby appoint
of

(Full Address)
Folio No. andfor COC participant L.D. No. and Sub Account
No, as myfour proxy in myfour absence to attend and vote for mefus and on mylour

behalf at the 36" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 23" day of April 2019 at 10:00 am
at Ramada Plaza Hote| Karachi and at any adjourment thereof.

As witness myfour hand this day 2019

Signed by the Said

Witnesses:
Signature
Name
Address
CNIC NofPassport No.

(Signature should agree with the SPECIMEN
signature registered with the Company)
Notes:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the annual General Meeting of the Company is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of him/her

2. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or his constituted
attorney or if such appointer is a corporationfcompany either under the common seal of such corporation
company or under the hand of an officer or attorney so authorized.

3. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned on the form.

4. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with
the proxy form.

5. The proxy shall produce hisfher original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting.

6. The proxy form, duly completed, must be deposited with the Company's registrar, Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Ltd. CDC House, 99 - B, Block 5.M.C.H.5, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal Karachi, not less

than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting.



Company Secretary:

PAK SUZUKI MOTOR CO. LTD.

DSU-13, Pakistan Steel Industrial Estate,
Bin Qasim, Karachi.

AFFIX
CORRECT
POSTAGE

Electronic Dividend Mandate Form

Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited

In accordance with the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Companies (Distribution
of Dividend) Regulations, 2017, it is mandatory that dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through
electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder,

Shareholders are requested to send the attached Form duly filled and signed, along with attested copy of
their CNIC to the Company’s Share Registrar M/s. Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC), CDC
House, 99-B, Block-B, SMCHS, Main Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Shareholders who hold shares with Participants
{ CDC are advised to provide the Dividend Mandate and attested copy of CNIC, directly to their concerned
Broker (Participants) / CDC.

My Bank account details for credit of dividend are as below:
Name of shareholder :

Folio Number/CDC Account No. : of Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited.
Mobile number of shareholder :

Title of Account [*) :
Account Number: :
IBAN Number (**) :
Name of Bank :
Bank branch & Code :
Mailing Address of Branch :
CNIC No. (attach attested copy) :
NTN (in case of corporate entity) :
It is stated that the above particulars given by me are correct and to the best of my knowledge; | shall keep
the Company informed in case of any changes in the said particulars in future,

Shareholder's Signature Date

NOTES:

*  Joint account holders shall specify complete Title of Account, including shareholders name,

** Please provide complete IBAN Number (24 digits), after checking with your concerned Bank branch to
enable electronic credit directly into your bank account.
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